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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

S B BRI

Revenue

Gross profit/(loss)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

per share (HK cents)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets
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2011

—Z——F

HK$' 000
ThER

2,217,382

1,021,453

754,990

585,292

49.18

28,942

1,971,540

349,822

459

1,650,201

2012
—E-C-F
HK$' 000
FAET
2,974,126

1,388,303

926,036

697,874

57.21

(Restated)

(KE7)

29,979

2,923,576

919,544

281

2,033,730

2013
“T-=%
HK$' 000
THx
390,189

32,302

(1,133,538)

(1,133,325)

51,753

2,851,694

1,669,835

1,233,612
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2014
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HK$' 000
TAT

489,133

(163,149)

(787,604)

(787,356)

46,309

1,312,312

854,635

503,986

2015
—F-if
HK$" 000
TER
418,865

82,683

(66,953)

(19,098)

(1.41)

31,17

1,385,544

904,687

511,974



REVENUE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Jindong (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jie Si
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Ma Lishan

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (appointed on 24 June 2014)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Hing Keung (appointed on 6 April 2014)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Lishan

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (appointed on 24 June 2014)

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Lishan

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (appointed on 24 June 2014)
Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Lishan

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (appointed on 24 June 2014)
Mr. Liang Guoxing

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company

(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China CITIC Bank International Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK CODE
886

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.silverbasegroup.com

(information on the website does not form part of this

annual report)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

FEHERNBFERRRE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BEERODBFERLE

ERPREBEFBELARAA

BB BT
EFEREER183
X I

171481712-1716 =

EEAERRT
PRI (BB BRAF
RBRITRHERAF
REIRTT (BE) BIRAA

EEgR A

886

DA A A

www.silverbasegroup.com

(A4 P9 ) B AR I T 18 K AN 38 — A8 73)






PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
JE hh It &




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
BE hn T &8

! -
s

sAEICHDW WA AN

e W
i PR S8

ARl e
KR ORI




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
FE hh It &8




FE B At i

PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
FE hh It &8




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
BE hh T &8




PRODUCT HIGHLIGHT
FE hh It &8

L EPd ) |

AOSAOWANT
ll!l'llﬂl"

@

BUOBAODAGUARYTUAR
!m-uur
EeEal




batrman’s Statement
FEIRE




18

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the
“Group”), | hereby present the annual report of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

In 2014, the general economic growth in China slowed
down due to the austerity measures adopted by
the central government of China to maintain steady
economic growth and restructuring, the annual gross
domestic product (GDP) in China maintained a steady
growth. Meanwhile, the national total retail sales of
consumer goods increased as a result of expanding
domestic demand. With the policies implemented by the
government to improve people’'s living standards and
stimulate spending, the average disposable income of
the dwellers of the towns and cities would continue to

increase.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

BRI AR -

AANEBERRBEEEZRRBERAA (AR
Al EZREMBAR SEIAKE)ES
(TEx)e(&EFg))  RAEULREEAAF
BE_T-RAF=-A=1t-—HLEZFE®H-

nE

—E-E - ERRBARER - #HERE]
MABHAZEBEESI T  BARBREEIER
B 2FTENEALELAERSTFIRE
A ARTHEATHEZHLEHE
mEERBE LA  ARBEARDRERER
RSB B BR - SRR R AR TR U AR
BB -



During the year under review, baijiu industry was still
continuing to adjust. After three years of significant
adjustment, the baijiu distribution sector and baijiu
market had nevertheless both displayed positive trends
and stable development. In respect of the distribution
sector, inventory of the distributors was restored to a
reasonable level after two years of active destocking in
the industry. During the year under review, the order
of baijiu distribution industry was gradually restored. In
respect of baijiu market, after the adjustment in the past
three years, the mass and commercial consumptions had
completely replaced the government consumption. As a
result, the consumption pattern, demand structure and
pricing mechanism of China’s baijiu market had become
more rational. During the year under review, the retail
prices and sales volumes of baijiu products, especially the
high-end baijiu product, remained stable, the operating
condition of the industry showed signs of improvement
and recovery, and the overall business environment

became more stable.

During the year under review, the Group focused on
implementing and executing its adjustment strategies,
which began to achieve the positive results. In terms
of products, during the year under review, the Group
continued to explore new sectors in the middle and low-
end baijiu market according to the changes in market
demand. While continuing to increase efforts on the
promotion and recruiting distributors for the new middle
and low-end products under the brand Guizhou Yaxi Cellar
and Red Fen Shijia series, the Group also worked actively
with the existing baijiu suppliers to develop new products.
During the year under review, the Group had cooperated
with Guojiu Moutai (Guizhou Renhuai) Marketing Co.,
Ltd. and obtained the exclusive right to launch four new
products in a total of eight varieties. These are Feitian
Moutai baijiu with 53% alcohol content in 400 and 1,300
milliliter bottles, Feitian Moutai baijiu with 43% alcohol
content in 400 and 1,300 milliliter bottles, Moutai Wang
Zi baijiu with 53% alcohol content in 1,500 and 3,000
milliliter bottles, and Moutai Yingbin baijiu with 53%
alcohol content in 1,500 and 3,000 milliliter bottles. In
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BN

terms of sales channels, while carrying out a full range of
channel development in and penetration to the middle
and low-end baijiu market, the Group also developed the
channels of e-commerce as a strategic move. Apart from
products sales through major online shopping platforms
such as Jingdong Mall, Yihaodian, T-mall and Vip.com,
as well as 11 shopping channels in China, the Group had
also been proactively exploring the feasibility of further
cooperation with the existing e-commerce partners. The
Group established strategic partnerships separately with
Hunan Happigo, Anhui Jiajiamall (operated by Anhui
Jiasenjia Trading Co., Ltd.) and Jingdong Mall, and
commenced the cooperation with Shunfeng Heike (JE£ 12
%), an online and offline e-commerce platform operating
under S.F. Express. Through promotion and sales of the
Group's liquor products via these established e-commerce
platforms, we built a more diversified sales network and
a set of cost-effective product marketing repertoire with
high market penetration. On the other hand, the Group
will be better in grasping the opportunities that the rapid
emergence e-commerce brings along. During the year
under review, the Group’s e-commerce business delivered
strong sales growth and contributed more to the Group's

revenue.

PROSPECTS

In 2014, Mainland China’s economic growth rate was
7.4%, which was albeit slower than 7.7% in 2013,
was still within a reasonable range. At the Asia-Pacific
Economic Cooperation meeting held in November 2014,
the President of the PRC elaborated the “new norm”
of economic development, which was mainly about the
shift from high gear economic growth to medium-to-high
gear growth, and the economic structure will continue
to be optimised and modified. The tertiary industry and
consumers’ demand will gradually become the core of
economy, the gap between urban and rural areas will
gradually narrow. With the rising proportion of household
income, a larger portion of the population will enjoy the
fruition of the development. In addition, with the rapid
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development of urbanization in China, the consumption
power and living standards of Chinese citizens will
continue to improve, which will result in continuous
growth in market demand for baijiu. At the same time,
the mass market consumption will be further enhanced,
stimulating the market demand for the middle to low-
end baijiu products. These will not only bring new growth
opportunities for the long-term sustainable development
of the baijiu industry, but also provide the Group with
potential market opportunities and room for development.

In the short run, after the baijiu industry experienced the
adjustment in the past three years, the baijiu market has
entered an era of rational consumption. With the ending
of destocking in the baijiu distribution market, the retail
prices of baijiu have remained stable, and the mass and
commercial consumptions have gradually replaced the
government consumption. The Group believes that the

business environment will gradually improve.

As a leading operator in China’s baijiu industry, the
Group will continue to adopt the long-term development
strategies, and practise a high-efficiency management
mode of sustainable development based on the industry
adjustment and market changes. The Group will seize
every opportunity brought by the changes of market
environment in order to lay a solid foundation for the

Group's long-term development.

The Group will continue to further enhance its product
portfolio, expand its sales channels and strengthen its
operational management based on the philosophy of
“Market and Consumer-Oriented”. In terms of products,
the Group will continue to optimise its product portfolio
by speeding up the introduction of the existing middle
and low-end products and new products of Kweichow
Moutai Chiew to the markets, so as to further increase its
market shares in high, middle and low-end baijiu markets.
On the other hand, the Group will proactively work with
the existing suppliers in the development of high quality
middle and low-end products to meet the needs of
different consumers. In respect of sales channel, the Group

will proactively explore and optimise sales channels. Firstly,
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the Group will continue to develop sales channels and
networks which target the middle and low-end products in
order to accelerate the product sales. Secondly, the Group
will leverage our existing products’ brand advantage to
strengthen its penetration and extension capabilities of its
national distribution channels and networks. In addition,
the Group will further expand its e-commerce channels
though developing more e-commerce sales platforms,
and at the same time work with existing e-commerce
partners to explore opportunities for further cooperation,
to exploit the huge potentials of the e-commerce market
and to achieve the online and offline synergies in order
to create better returns for the shareholders. In respect
of operational management, the Group will continue to
ensure an effective allocation of resources through refined
management in order to improve operational efficiency,
and adopt stringent financial policies to create favorable

conditions for its stable and sustainable development.

The Group’s development would have been impossible
without the unstinting efforts of employees. In April 2015,
the Group granted share options to its management team
and outstanding employees at all levels, as recognition of
their contributions and dedications to the Group, as well
as encouragement for their continuous contribution to the

Group's sustainable development in the future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to sincerely thank our
shareholders, business partners and customers for their
continuous support and understanding. Leveraging on our
own resources and strengths, we will seize opportunities
and strive to explore new markets in a more pragmatic,
solid and meticulous manner, to achieve the business
objectives and strategic plans of the Group, and to create

better value and returns for our shareholders.

Liang Guoxing
Chairman

25 June 2015

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

—HRRETHEHEERE —TEHABE
yﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ”é’%—ﬁﬁ'$igﬁ
BHRERENETHEAERHRTE—
BEMRTREN  REREANEFDHE m%@
h BRE|EGTHRME  RERRAESE
R - 2EEESE AEBEBESER
BREALEEERERNARIN - KIES
LENG AR AKETS - 0RENE
BB HERER  REH BRERARKE
BRAIER MR -

AEENZERMIHAUENETL R _-F
—EFUA AEEREEEBRLRERES
BEIRTEERE FRRBEIHAKEM
MHB S - WL SR HFESEREER
REMFEZRELETM

RE AABRREFERORHSLM
R EBREBRHUAREP—BEUKREEE
MXFMERRTHRBOHE - RAGEKE
BEMNERNES NEBE FHAE B
MEmRE LERE BHhRAMSE '
AAREENEEAERBERAE R%%%
EFHNEENRDR -

puuis

FE
REHE

20156 A25H



......

= s o
Py S e R
1T

-

] dnagement’s

Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D



24

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B W i B o e

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
a total revenue of approximately HK$418.9 million
(2014: HK$489.1 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 14.4% compared to last year. Excluding the
factor of provision for inventories, the Group’s gross profit
for the year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$104.2 million (2014: HK$11.4 million), the gross profit
ratio before provision for inventories was approximately
24.9% (2014: 2.3%). The loss for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company was approximately
HK$19.1 million (2014: HK$787.4 million). Basic loss per
ordinary share for the year was approximately HK$0.0141
(2014: HK$0.5812).

For the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue derived
from the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market
accounted for approximately 57.8% of the Group’s
total revenue (2014: 16.0%), while revenue from the
international market accounted for approximately 42.2%
of the total revenue (2014: 84.0%).

Baijiu Business

During the year under review, baijiu’s consumption pattern
and behaviour have resumed to a normal and rational
state after the industry adjustments in the past three
years. The industry’s operation environment showed signs
of improvement and recovery, and the overall business

environment has become stable.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the
annual income of catering industry for the year 2014 was
RMB2,786.0 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 0.7% over 2013 to 9.7%. Affected by the industry
adjustment and a number of frugality policies enforced
by the PRC government, the income growth of catering
industry in China decreased by 3.3% and 4.6% in 2012
and 2013 respectively. In 2014, the income growth of

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

catering industry in China recovered from a declining trend
for the first time in the past three years. This indicated
that the PRC government consumption has gradually
been replaced by mass and commercial consumptions.
After two years of active destocking in baijiu distribution
channels, the inventory in the channels was restored
to a healthy level. While the mass and commercial
consumptions became the primary support of baijiu
market, the consumptions structure and behavior of baijiu
market became rational, the high-end baijiu sector and
its retail prices remained stable in the year under review.
The market environment of baijiu industry was gradually

improving.

During the year under review, the Group actively adjusted
the product structure according to the market changes
in mainland China. The Group has obtained the ten-
year sole distributorship for the following eight products:
Feitian Moutai baijiu with 53% alcohol content in 400
and 1,300 milliliter bottles, Feitian Moutai baijiu with
43% alcohol content in 400 and 1,300 milliliter bottles,
Moutai Wang Zi baijiu with 53% alcohol content in 1,500
and 3,000 milliliter bottles, and Moutai Yingbin baijiu
with 53% alcohol content in 1,500 and 3,000 milliliter
bottles. Wuliangye baijiu with 68% alcohol content in 100
milliliter and 250 milliliter bottles were launched. Guizhou
Yaxi Cellar baijiu, with its differentiating advantages of
“China’s time-honoured brand” and a “protected product
of national geographical indicator”, was positioned as a
mass consumption product by building a product image
of a reasonably priced, high quality product in the minds
of the consumers. The Group believes that the value of
a brand for consumer products will play a critical role
in the market competition in the future. Wuliangye and
Moutai products will become the consumers’ de facto
choice for business dinners, holiday gatherings and gifts.
The Group will actively promote Guizhou Yaxi Cellar as
the number one choice for day-to-day consumption by

the general public. During the year under review, the
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Group was also involved intensively in the development of
e-commerce and TV shopping channels. While maintaining
the advantage of the traditional channels, the Group has
developed long-term strategic relationships with Jingdong
Mall, “Shunfeng Heike” and Hunan Happigo. The Group's
products have already penetrated into the channels of
all major e-commerce and TV shopping platforms, and

achieved good results.

During the year under review, the Group continuously
adopted a strict cost control policy on lowering different
types of expenses including administrative and operating

expenses.

Wine and Cigarettes Businesses

During the period under review, the Group continued
to develop the wine and cigarettes businesses steadily.
Cigarettes business remained stable in sales during
the period under review. The Group had been closely
monitoring changes in the market and adopted a proactive
and pragmatic approach to map out marketing plans for

business opportunities development.

Business in Electronic Commerce and Image Stores
During the year under review, the Group’s e-commerce
business delivered strong sales growth and contributed
more to the Group’s revenue. To better seize the
opportunities of the emerging e-commerce market, the
Group had been optimising its e-commerce channel
development and expanding its coverage on online
shopping platforms. Apart from major online shopping
platforms such as Jingdong Mall, Yihaodian, T-mall
and Vip.com, the Group had also started its ten-year
cooperation with “Shunfeng Heike” during the year under
review. Through such cooperation, the Group enjoyed
priorities in promoting and selling the Group’s liquors
through Heike's extensive sales network. Moreover,
the Group had also entered into strategic cooperations

with Hunan Happigo Home Shopping Co. Ltd and Anhui
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jiasenjia Trading Co. Ltd, and through these platforms
the Group would sell its liquor products. During the year
under review, the Group continued to expand its sales on
TV shopping. The Group has been cooperating with 11
shopping channels in China, in order to further diversifying

its coverage over the e-commerce platforms.

In addition, the Group had been exploring further
business opportunities with existing online shopping
partners. As such, the Group entered into a 10-year
strategic cooperation agreement in April 2015 with
Beijing Jingdong Century Trading Co. Ltd. Through such
cooperation, the Group enjoyed the priority in selling all
of its existing and future new products on jd.com. The
Group believed that the above strategic moves would
further advance the rapid development of the Group's
e-commerce business, which will assist the Group's

product sales.

During the year under review, there were a total of 333
authorised image stores. To underscore and grasp the
thriving e-commerce business opportunities, except for
certain selected physical stores which are retained, the
Group shifted the operation of all other physical Wine

Kingdom image stores to our e-commerce platforms.

Outlook and Future Development

Looking forward, the PRC government has adopted
measures to restructure and enhance the economy which
will be conducive to a sustainable and robust growth
in the long term. Meanwhile, the urbanisation rate of
China has been increasing consistently. According to the
National Bureau of Statistics, urban population in 2014
made up of approximately 54.77% of the total population,
representing an urban population of approximately
750 million. In the medium to long run, the ongoing
urbanisation will become a primary growth momentum
for China’s consumer market and baijiu market, which will
be the driving force for the long-term development of the

baijiu industry.
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To ensure the sustainable development of its business, the
Group will strive to accomplish the following tasks in the

future.

Firstly, the Group will continue its development in
optimising its product portfolio. The Group will seize
the opportunities to increase efforts on promotion and
recruiting distributors of the new middle and low-end
products. The Group will accelerate the development
of Feitian Moutai baijiu with 53% alcohol content in
400 milliliter bottle and the new middle and low-end
products under the brand of Guizhou Yaxi Cellar baijiu,
and expedite the product sales, in order to increase their
market shares as well as broadening revenue sources. On
the other hand, the Group will continue to work with
existing suppliers to develop more high quality new middle
and low-end products to meet the demands of different

consumers.

Secondly, in respect of channel development, the Group
will further expand and establish its traditional distribution
network with a focus on the development strategy of new
middle and low-end products. Furthermore, the Group
will optimise and strengthen cooperation with the existing
distributors. In addition, the Group will enhance its
development of e-commerce channels by exploring more
online shopping platforms and e-commerce sales platforms
while working with the existing e-commerce partners to
explore different in-depth cooperation in order to diversify
its sales channels and attract more potential consumers.
Such measures will increase the efficiency and efficacy of
the Group’s market penetration, to enhance the overall
market share of the Group and create better returns for
the Shareholders.

Lastly, in respect of operation management, the Group
will continue to strengthen internal control, adopt
more prudent financial management and cost control
measures, further regulate the operation expenses
and maintain healthy financial fundamentals in order
to achieve sustainable development and eventually
reward shareholders, employees and customers for their

continuous support.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit/(Loss)

The Group generates revenue primarily by selling high-
end liquors. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$418.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately 14.4%
compared to a total revenue of HK$489.1 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014. For the year ended 31 March
2015, approximately 57.8% of revenue was derived from
the PRC market (2014: 16.0%).

The Group’s revenue derived from the distribution of
liquors represented approximately 95.2% of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
96.1%) while the revenue derived from the distribution
of cigarettes represented approximately 4.8% of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 3.9%).

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 was approximately HK$82.7 million (2014: gross
loss of HK$163.1 million). The increase in gross profit was
mainly due to the sales of those inventories with provision
for inventories in respect of write-down to net realisable
value made for the year ended 31 March 2014, resulted
in a reduction of average unit cost of goods sold and the
decrease in amount provided for inventories in respect
of write-down to net realisable value for the year ended
31 March 2015 as compared to the corresponding period
in 2014. Excluding the factor of provision for inventories,
the Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 was approximately HK$104.2 million (2014: HK$11.4
million), the gross profit ratio before provision for

inventories was approximately 24.9% (2014: 2.3%).

Other Income and Gains, Net

Other income and gains, net amounted to approximately
HK$1.1 million for the financial year 2015 (2014: HK$6.5
million). Such decrease was mainly due to the sharp

decrease in bank interest income from pledged deposits.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised salaries
and welfare related to sales and marketing personnel,
advertising and promotional expenses, transportation
costs, rental expenses and miscellaneous expenses related

to sales.

Selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately HK$180.1 million (2014: HK$221.4 million)
accounting for approximately 43.0% (2014: 45.3%) of
the revenue of the Group for the financial year 2015.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in sales and
marketing personnel expenses, advertising expenses and

rental expenses for warehouse and shops.

Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses mainly comprised salaries and
welfare, office rental expenses, professional fees and other

administrative expenses.

Administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$110.7 million (2014: HK$135.1 million) accounting
for approximately 26.4% (2014: 27.6%) of the revenue of
the Group for the financial year 2015. Such decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in management staff salaries
and wages, legal and professional fees and entertainment

expenses for business purpose.

Write-back of Impairment/(Impairment), Net

The balance amounted to approximately HK$170.9
million (2014: loss of HK$234.0 million) for the financial
year 2015. The change was mainly due to the write-
back of impairment allowances of trade receivables, bills

receivable, prepayments and other receivables.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$30.8 million
(2014: HK$40.4 million) representing approximately 7.4%
(2014: 8.3%) of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
2015. The finance costs include interest on discounted
bills, trust receipt loans and short-term bank loans and
other loans. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease

in bank loan interest.

Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
for the year as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2014:
Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries or

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

After due and careful considerations, the Group revisited
its tax exposure by performing a detailed assessment
on the Group’s Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") payable
brought forward from prior years. After considering
the low practical risk of payment, certain of the prior
year's CIT provision was reversed in the current year. In
the future, the Group will continue to perform regular

reassessment.

Loss Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Company

Taking into account of the aforementioned, the loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$19.1 million, as compared to a loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$787.4 million in 2014.
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Dividends
The Company did not pay any interim dividend during the

financial year 2015.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group has adopted stringent credit policy. Generally,
the customers of the Group shall settle payment
obligations in cash or bank’s acceptance bill issued by
reputable banks before delivery of the goods. In prior year,
the Group also granted a credit period of up to 1 year to

some long-term or reliable customers.

The decrease in trade receivables was mainly due to the
settlement of trade receivables by the customers and short

credit terms were granted by the Group to the customers.

All the Group’s distributors have been selected after
careful and serious consideration. They generally possess
extensive distribution networks, considerable financial
strengths and competitive market positions. After careful
assessment of the receivable balance’s recoverability by
taking into account of the current adverse operating
environment, financial conditions of the distributors
and aging of the balances, total impairment allowance
in aggregate of approximately HK$212.6 million (2014:
HK$592.4 million) had been made as at 31 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has
bought back inventories from one distributor and the
related purchase consideration was offset with the
Group’s trade receivables due from this distributor which
were previously impaired. Besides, during the year ended
31 March 2015 and up to the date of this report, settlement
were received by the Group from a few distributors for the
previously impaired trade and bills receivables of the same
amount. As a result, the total impairment allowance of

trade and bills receivables decreased accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2015, the trade and bills receivables net
of provision were approximately HK$75.8 million (2014:
HK$50.2 million). Approximately 50.8% of the net trade
and bills receivables were aged within two months as at
31 March 2015 (2014: 44.8%). All bills receivables were

issued and accepted by banks.

The Group will continue to adopt stringent credit control
policy and will apply the following measures to manage
and enhance the recoverability of the Group’s trade and

bills receivables:

(i) close and continuous communication and
cooperation between the distributors and our sales
managers in strengthening the sales channels and
marketing strategies of the Group, which enables
clearance of their accumulated inventories and

settlements to the Group; and

(ii) actively pursue cash-transaction business such as

e-commerce and TV shopping.

Up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsequent
settlement of the trade and bills receivables was

approximately HK$1.6 million.

Trade Payables

As at 31 March 2015, the trade payables was
approximately HK$3.9 million (31 March 2014: HK$3.7
million). The balance remained almost unchanged during

the year.
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Inventories

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’'s inventories was
approximately HK$758.3 million (2014: HK$796.3 million).
The changes in inventories level was not significant which
was mainly due to the net effect that (i) the purchases
of products that are well-received by consumers, such as
Wauliangye and Moutai, has increased as compared to the
corresponding period in last year; and (i) the Group has
repurchased certain inventories from a customer during
the year under review. Therefore, when compared to the
corresponding period in last year, the changes in inventory

level for the year was not significant.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$170.1 million (2014
HK$82.3 million), approximately 90.2% (2014: 29.4%)
of which was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”), 9.7%
(2014: 70.5%) of which was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and approximately 0.1% (2014: 0.1%) of which
was denominated in other currencies. The increase in
cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to the increase
in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. As at
31 March 2015, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$480.9 million (2014: HK$457.7 million).

Capital Structure of the Group

Total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at
31 March 2015 was approximately HK$453.9 million
(2014: HK$354.5 million), of which all were repayable
within one year or on demand and bore floating and
fixed interest rate. Approximately 94.6% (2014: 97.8%)
of the total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
was denominated in RMB, 2.6% (2014: Nil) of which
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 2.8% (2014:

2.2%) of which was denominated in United States dollars.

No particular seasonality trend for the borrowing
requirements of the Group observed for the year under

review.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s trust receipt loan denominated in United
States dollars of approximately HK$12.6 million bore
interest at a rate of LIBOR+3.5% (2014: Nil) per annum.
The Group’s trust receipt loan as at 31 March 2015
was secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$15.2 million (2014: Nil), and was
supported by a guarantee provided by a bank in the PRC.

The Group’s bank loans denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$303.0 million were unsecured, bore
interest at rate of 120% of PBOC (2014: ranging from
110% to 120% of PBOC) per annum and would be
repayable in April 2015 (2014: repayable between April
2014 and November 2014). As at 31 March 2015,
the Group’s bank loans were supported by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company and a subsidiary of

the Company.

The Group's other loan denominated in Hong Kong dollars
of approximately HK$12.0 million bore interest at a rate
of 12% per annum (2014: Nil). The Group’s other loan as
at 31 March 2015 was secured by the Group’s investment
property with a carrying amount of approximately HK$6.7
million as at 31 March 2015 and was supported by a

guarantee provided by a director of the Company.

The Group’s other loan denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$126.3 million was unsecured, bore
interest at a rate of 18% per annum (2014: Nil) and was
fully repaid in April 2015.

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group’s other
loan of approximately HK$12.0 million containing a
repayment on demand clause is included within current

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Based on the maturity terms of the other loan, the amount
repayable in respect of the other loan is approximately
HK$12.0 million payable in the third to fifth years,

inclusive.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B W i B o e

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has fully repaid the other loan denominated in
RMB of approximately HK$126.3 million in April 2015
and the other loan denominated in Hong Kong dollars
of approximately HK$12.0 million in May 2015 after the

disposal of the Group’s investment property.

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
RMB. Revenue derived and operating expenses incurred
by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Directors consider that a
reasonably possible annual change of 5% in the exchange
rate between Hong Kong dollars and RMB would have
no material impact on the Group’s results and therefore
hedging through the use of derivative instruments is

considered unnecessary.

The funding and treasury policies of the Group are
centrally managed and controlled by the senior
management in Hong Kong. The Group's financing
activities are managed centrally by maintaining an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance
the Group’s operations. The Group also ensures the
availability of the bank credit facilities to address any short
term funding requirements. The Group’s cash and bank

balances are placed with reputable financial institutions.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, deposits received, other payables and
accruals, bank advance for discounted bills and amounts
due to related parties and directors less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital represents equity attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company. As at
31 March 2015, the gearing ratio was approximately
52.3% (2014: 52.3%).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employment and Remuneration Policy

The Group had a total work force of 165 employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2015 (2014: 244
employees). The total salaries and related costs (including
Directors’ fee) amounted to approximately HK$101.6
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 130.3
million). The Group has implemented the remuneration
policy, bonus and share option scheme based on the
achievements and performance of employees. The Group
has also participated in the mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and the state managed retirement
benefit scheme in the PRC. The Group continues to
provide training courses for its staff to enable them to
achieve self-improvement and to enhance their skill and

knowledge.

LITIGATION
In December 2013, one distributor of the Group (the

“Plaintiff”) filed a claim to a District People’s Court in
the PRC (the “PRC Court”) against one of the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC in relation to the Group’s
obligation to buy back certain inventories from the Plaintiff
(the “Claim"”). The Plaintiff demanded the purchase
consideration and related compensation from the Group
of RMB20.1 million (equivalent to HK$25.3 million) in

total.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
proceeding is at an early stage and the court hearing date
has not been fixed. With reference to the advice from
the Group’s legal counsel, the directors of the Company
are in the opinion that the Group has grounds to contest
the Claim and because the above legal case was in its
preliminary stage of legal process, the outcome of the
legal case and the amount of penalties required could not
be predicted and measured with sufficient reliability at
the moment. Accordingly, no provision regarding liabilities
arising therefrom had been made by the Group in these

financial statements as at 31 March 2015.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Guoxing, aged 49, was appointed on
12 September 2007. He is the founder, chairman of
the Group and chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. Liang is also a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He is a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Liang is primarily responsible for
the overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liang has 18 years
of experience in the sales and distribution of Chinese
liquor and cigarettes. In April 2013, Mr. Liang obtained
Doctor of Business Administration, honoris causa, from
the Northern University in U.S.. He obtained the 13th
World Outstanding Chinese Award co-organised by
World Chinese Business Investment Foundation and
United World Chinese Association Limited in April 2013.
Mr. Liang is a standing committee member of the 11th
Session of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Zhanjiang and a member of the 10th Session
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Guangdong Province. He is also a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Liang is the sole shareholder and a director of Keen

Pearl Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Wang Jindong, aged 56, was appointed on
1 April 2010. He joined the Group in November
2008. He is the chief financial officer of the Group.
Mr. Wang is responsible for overseeing the investment,
legal and financial affairs, as well as general business
development of the Group. Mr. Wang is currently a
postgraduate student for a part-time Master’s degree
in Economics at the Central University of Finance
and Economics, majoring in capital operation and
investment and financing directions. He graduated
from the Guangdong Radio and TV University
(EREHEEMRAZE) with a Bachelor's degree in
Accountancy and is a qualified accountant in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has more than 30 years of experience in
accounting and administration in government organisation
and the state owned enterprise in the PRC as well
as overseas enterprises, including the Guangdong
Administration of Coal Geology (EREAMER),
Shenzhen Jewellery City Enterprise Company Limited (&3]
MHENEEBRAT) and K&M Asia Limited.

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze, aged 42, was appointed on
6 March 2008. She has been appointed as member of the
remuneration committee and member of the compliance
committee of the Company from 31 December 2012.
She is the head of finance of the Group and a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. She is an authorised
representative of the Company as required under Rule
3.05 of the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Ms. Cheung joined
the Group in September 2000 and is responsible for the
financial and accounting affairs of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Cheung was an assistant supervisor
in Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, a CPA firm. Ms. Cheung holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts majoring in accountancy from

the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu lJie Si, aged 63, was appointed on 6 March 2008.
Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in finance and
corporate management in the PRC. From 1984 to 1995,
Mr. Wu served in numerous positions in the Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC"), including the
president of ICBC Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998,
Mr. Wu served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen
Municipal Government. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Wu
served as the assistant to the governor of Guangdong
Province. From 12 February 2000 to 8 May 2001, Mr. Wu
joined Guangdong Enterprise (Holdings) Limited (“GDE")
as a director during the process of assisting its debt
restructuring. Mr. Wu ceased to be a director of GDE
shortly after the closing of its debt restructuring on
22 December 2000. From 2000 to 2005, Mr. Wu was
appointed as the chairman of Guangdong Yue Gang
Investment Holdings Company Limited (EREEIREILER
BMRAE]) and GDH Limited (BRIZEKRBRAR). Mr. Wu
has been appointed in various positions in companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wu served as the chairman of Guangdong
Investment Limited (stock code: 270) (“GDI") from March
2000 to March 2001, as a director of GDI from March
2000 to April 2005 and as the honorary president of GDI
from March 2001 to April 2005. Mr. Wu also served as a
director and honorary president of Guangdong Tannery
Limited (stock code: 1058) from February 2004 to April
2005. Both companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. While Mr. Wu was serving as the
chairman and then an honorary president of GDI, GDI and
its subsidiaries underwent a debt restructuring, details
of which were included in GDI's announcements dated
23 December 2000 and 6 May 2003. From April 2005 to
January 2008, Mr. Wu was appointed as the executive
director and from June 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Wu
was appointed as the managing director and the chief
executive officer of Hopson Development Holdings Limited

(stock code: 754), which is listed on the main board of
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the Stock Exchange. From September 2005 to July 2011,
Mr. Wu served as an independent non-executive director
of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3968).
From May 2007 to August 2008, Mr. Wu also served as
an independent non-executive director of Yingli Green
Energy Holding Company Limited (stock code: YGE)
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. From
15 July 2008 to 23 December 2009, Mr. Wu was executive
director of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (stock
code: 3883) (“China Aoyuan”). From 24 December 2009
to 19 May 2013, Mr. Wu was a non-executive director and
vice chairman of China Aoyuan. From 13 February 2006 to
27 June 2013, Mr. Wu is a non-executive director of China
Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855).

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock
code: 392) and China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as “China Insurance
International Holdings Company Limited”) (stock code:
966), both companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu is also a non-executive
director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code:
604), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited and China CITIC Bank International Limited.
Mr. Wu obtained a Master's degree in Economics in 1984
and a Doctoral degree in Economics in 1996, both from
the Research Institute of Finance the People’s Bank of
China. Mr. Wu completed post-doctoral research work in
theoretical economics at Nankai University (F3FAZ2) in
1998-2000 and was qualified as a professor in theoretical

economics at Nankai University in 2001.
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Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny, aged 47, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 12 September
2007 and re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company on 25 September 2010. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in January 2007. During the period from January
2007 to September 2010, he held a number of senior
management positions of the Group including the director
and chief executive officer of Silver Base International
Development Co. Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He was
a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of the compliance committee of the Company. Mr. Chen
was responsible for the overall strategies implementation,
business development of the Group. He was also involved
in and supported all investor relationship and public
relationship functions of the Group.

Mr. Chen is a responsible officer of Regal Portfolio
Management Limited (“REIT Manager”), the manager of
Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881).
He is also an executive director and a member of the
disclosure committee of the REIT Manager.

Mr. Chen has extensive knowledge and experience in
business development, international trade and project
management in sales and distribution of electrical,
mechanical and consumer products. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chen was the general manager of Faithful
Trading (H.K.) Limited and the operations controller of
GOME Home Appliances (H.K.) Ltd. Further, Mr. Chen held
a number of executive positions with the subsidiaries of
Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 25),
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
from September 1993 to July 2002 during which he was
responsible for the China market and different overseas
markets such as the United States, Vietnam, Myanmar,
Philippines and Japan. Mr. Chen is a member of the
13th and 14th Session of the Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference, Yueshou District, Guangzhou
City. He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and a member of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1990, and a Bachelor’s degree
in Administrative Studies and a certificate in Management
in 1992, all from York University.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

BREBEE 475 R_TTLFNLATZ
FEZERARBHNTEELAR T —F
FAAZTHRAFERARRBFFNITES -
REER-_TTLE-AMAXEER - R
EELFE-AZ-ZT-TFENLANME KL
EEAKEZERAEEBRU  BRERE
BR#HERERQA (BARARNKERG)
BEFERITRAHE > UERARBITHAR - K
ERANAFMEESEKEREAREZRS
KB -RAELBEBEAEEEREBENE
o ZBERIFE - RABLELRTEAE
B AREEBERNL A HBEROBEE -

RALBESEREEEERARAR (ERESE
SR (R SR - 1881) 2 BB A ([EXER
EEADN)ZBEAE - WTREFRFEFRERE
AZHITEZERBEBREZEEKE -

REENHEERKHEET BHULHBEER
MEBER BREZNRAEREEHEEES
BN - REEMARNEER - AR
25 (BR)BERAFMNMAELE  RABEX
BR(FR)ERAAMNEERE - I R
TEH-NAN=ZFNLAZE_TZ_FLAN
BRI ERETAGELTEREERSRAR
(BRI : 25) MZHRIBR BT EER
- BMAREETEME R TRNEINTS
(el - B Mm - FFRERAA)NT
F-REERET=ZELEETHEFEAR
BUAmAEZEMNMBEERES - RARE
BEEZRBERGENRERAIT A ARERS
€8 -BMAER - NANZFRORAENF
XBELEM YR - ZFREZKRE
MITHRMREL B NEERE -



Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio, aged 61, was
appointed as an executive director from 1 April 2010 to
9 April 2013 and re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director with effect from 10 April 2013.
Mr. Ozorio joined the Group in October 2009. He has
more than 30 years of experience in investment banking
and equity capital management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ozorio had served at Merrill Lynch, PF & Smith
(HK) Limited, Anderson Man (Investment Services) Limited,
Refco Futures Limited, Lippo Securities Limited, Sun Hung
Kai Securities Limited and Sun Hung Kai Investment

Services Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 45, was appointed on 6 March

2008. He is the chairman of the audit committee, the
compliance committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Hung is
an executive director and the chief executive officer of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (stock code: 64), a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung has
over 18 years’ experience as certified public accountant in
Hong Kong and is currently a director of Venture Partners
CPA Limited. Mr. Hung is a licensed person under the
Securities and Futures Ordinances for regulated activity
“advising on corporate finance”. Mr. Hung obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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Mr. Ma Lishan, aged 63, was appointed on 6 March
2008. He is a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the compliance committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is
experienced in corporate management. Mr. Ma served
various senior managerial positions such as director,
general manager in certain staple food, sizable food and
edible oils processing corporations and Great Wall Wine
under the COFCO Group. Mr. Ma has served as the vice
chairman of Top Glory International Holdings Limited
(controlling shareholder of COFCO Property (Group) Co.,
Ltd). Mr. Ma was appointed as an executive director from
January 1996, was appointed as director and managing
director from May 1997 and was appointed from April
2002 to June 2003 as the managing director of China
Foods Limited (stock code: 506) (formerly known as
“China Foods Holdings Limited (TEIRREREEE
R /A 7R))" and “COFCO International Limited (% &I
BB ABRAR])"), which is listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. In 2000, he was appointed as the
deputy general manager of China Foods Import and Export
(Group) Co., Ltd. (FEIf@ARMELD (£E) BRAR).
From June 2003 to July 2005, Mr. Ma was the deputy
managing director of COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (&
BHREMEBEEE) AR AR after its reorganisation.
From June 2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive
director of Sino Resources Group Limited (carrying on
business in Hong Kong as Sino Gp Limited) ({#/1& &
E£BABRAF]) (formerly known as Kenfair International
(Holdings) Limited (3% BB %) BRAR]) (stock code:
223), which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Sunac China Holdings Limited (stock code:
1918), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. From 1 September 2010 to 8 August 2012,
Mr. Ma was the executive director, chief executive officer
and chairman of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
(formerly known as Hao Tian Resources Group Limited)
(stock code: 474), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange; he currently serves as senior
consultant of Hao Tian Development Group Limited from
August 2012 to present. In 1975, Mr. Ma graduated from
the University of Foreign Languages in Beijing.
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Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward, aged 60, was appointed
on 24 June 2014. He is a member of the audit committee,
compliance committee, remuneration committee and

nomination committee of the Company.

Dr. Lee is the founder and the chairman of Nuovo
Collection Hong Kong Limited which is the leading high

end Italian furniture retailer in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Dr. Lee was graduated at Ontario College of Art & Design,
Canada in 1977 with honor Associate of Ontario College
of Art & Design (A.0.C.A.D.).

With 36 years of experience as a professional interior
designer and furniture retailer, Dr. Lee was appointed as
the chairman of the Furniture and Decoration Industries
Group by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the
vice-chairman for Hong Kong Furniture and Decoration
Trade Association Limited. The Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region has appointed Dr. Lee as a
standing committee member of The Public Affair Forum in
20009.

Dr. Lee has also participated in a number of social
community service groups, such as a director of The
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman
of the New Territories District Liaison and a vice-chairman
of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce, In
addition, Dr. Lee is an executive council member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a district secretary
of Rotary International District 3450, a chairman of
Preserve Planet & Earth of Rotary International District
3450, a director of China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade and council member of Innovation
China.
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Dr. Lee was awarded as “China Top 10 Financial and
Intelligent Persons” for the year 2008, “China Famous
Professional”, “China Enterprise Award for Innovative
Corporate” and “China Enterprise Award for Creative
Businessmen” in the PRC. In Hong Kong, Dr. Lee was
awarded as “The World Outstanding Chinese Award
for the year 2006”, “Honorary Doctor for Business
Administration and Management” and “2009 Capital

Leader of Excellence”.

In 2013, Dr. Lee was appointed as the “Most Promising
Entrepreneurship Award” of “Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship
Awards (APEA) by Enterprise Asia for recognising his
business profession and for his great entrepreneurship
spirit in leading, growing and contributing to his
organisations, communities and country. He was granted
as the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Director (FHKIOD) by the Hong Kong Director Institute
since 1997. He was also appointed as the standing
committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shenzhen District and director of
HeBei Chinese Overseas Friendship Association. In 2014,
Asia Brand Development Association recognised Nuovo

Collection as a “Famous Brand Hong Kong 2013".
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

The senior management of the Group comprises all the

executive directors and the following persons:

Mr. Wong Hing Keung, aged 53, the company secretary
of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2014.
Mr. Wong is mainly responsible for overseeing the
Group's corporate governance, regulatory compliance and
legal matters and advising on corporate development,
information disclosure and internal control policies and
procedures of the Group. Mr. Wong is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He obtained a master’s
degree in professional accounting from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Wong has over 20
years of experience in the areas of auditing, finance and
accounting. He is also experienced in the compliance
duties of company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is an
authorised representative of the Company under Rule 3.05

of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Chan Sing Doris, aged 40, is the vice president of
the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group in November
1997. She is responsible for sales and distribution of
high-ended Chinese liquor in Hong Kong market and
maintaining close relationship with the customers. Ms.
Chan performed as manager of administration and human
resources of the Group previously, and was proficient in
the Group's business operation. Ms. Chan holds a post-
graduate diploma in international management in The
International Institute of Management and obtained a
degree of Master of Business Administration in Bulacan

State University in Philippines.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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Mr. Yu Zhiqiang, aged 33, is the vice president of Silver
Base Trading and Development (Shenzhen) Co. Limited
(“Silver Base Trading Shenzhen”). Mr. Yu joined the
Group in April 2013 and is currently responsible for the
management of the Group’s online marketing, human
resources, marketing and integrated planning. Mr. Yu is
now pursuing a master degree in business administration
at Renmin University of China (FEIARXRE). Mr. Yu is
experienced in large team management and has engaged

in various industries including beverages and cosmetics.

Mr. Yang Jingke, aged 34, is the vice president of Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen. Mr. Yang joined the Group in
July 2007. He is responsible for offline marketing and
management of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from
the Beijing Bailie University (Jt RIEZ2EEZ67) majoring
in International Trading and subsequently obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Jinggangshan University (FFiEILKX28). He is now pursuing
a master degree in business administration at Xiamen
University (BEPFIRE). Mr. Yang has been engaging
in the sales of wine and liquor for more than 8 years,
during which he accumulated extensive experience in the
industry. Mr. Yang was engaged as an operation manager
upon joining the Group and served as regional manager
and vice general manager before his promotion to vice

president of Silver Base Trading Shenzhen.

Ms. Lin Xingyu, aged 30, is the vice president of Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen. Ms. Lin joined the Group in
August 2012, and is responsible for the liaison with the
suppliers of baijiu and handling of export of Chinese
branded wine. Ms. Lin graduated from Shenzhen
Polytechnic (RYIBEZEFMTZ2ET) in 2007 and is experienced

in the alcoholic beverage business.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Ms. Li Yuxi, aged 32, is the vice president of Silver Base
Trading Shenzhen. Ms. Li joined the Group in November
2012 to participate in the development of e-commerce
and the initiation, development and promotion of
the TV shopping channels. She is responsible for 020
channel-related business including the strategic planning,
marketing and sales management of 020 channels. Ms.
Li obtained a Bachelor’s degree in International Economics

and Trading from Jianghan University (T)ZKX22).

Ms. Wang Luyu, aged 34, is the vice president of
Silver Base Trading Shenzhen who joined the Group
in December 2013. Ms. Wang is in charge of the sales
management of the TV shopping channel. Ms. Wang
obtained a Bachelor's degree in English from Shandong
University (I3 AZ2). She has served in the Shenzhen
branch of Guangdong Southern Home Shipping Co.,
Ltd. (BEREAREBWAER LT and is familiar with the
operation of TV shopping market. She also possesses

extensive experience in relation to TV shopping business.

o A P i R

EEELL 25 RINBEEZFABE
?ﬁi%:?*:ﬁ‘f’*ﬂﬁﬂ)\zﬁﬁ s
EMSEAMEETFABRERENREN
- 2R HEREEIE  BEF020
RiE - FREEBIBEANO20REMD  MHE
- HEBEEESEE FTRETREBEER
TERNBEREHBEE HHE -

I&FELt 34 ANREESHEIEE -
TRETR-ZE—=F+_AMALXEKEE " 1}
BEESREMEHERII/F  TRETEERN
IWWRABREBERE  CABRERMARE
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ/WAﬂ CAREEEYS
BEERE  BALSENERBYEREER -

49

SRR - SUREEERARAE



50

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=R

The directors (the “Directors”) of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) hereby present
their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2015 are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the

financial year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 110
to 224.

No interim dividend was paid during the financial year.

To reserve the resources for the Group’s business
development, the board did not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (“Annual
General Meeting”) will be held in Hong Kong on Friday,
21 August 2015. Notice of the Annual General Meeting
will be issued and despatched to the shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”) in due course.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 19 August 2015 to Friday, 21 August
2015, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) will be effected, for the purpose of
determining Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than

4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, 18 August 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment, and investment property of the Group during
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of Company on a pro rata basis to the existing

Shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 20 February 2009, the Shareholders approved and

adopted a share option scheme of the Company (the

“Share Option Scheme”). Key terms of the Share Option

Scheme are summarised below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide an incentive for the Qualified Participants
(as defined below) to work with commitment
towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Shareholders and
to retain and attract persons whose contributions
are or may be beneficial to the growth and

development of the Group.

Qualified Participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employee, any executive and non-
executive director of the Company, its subsidiaries
or entity in which the Company or its subsidiaries
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”) and
any such other persons (including but not limited to
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, contractor,
business partner or service provider of the Company
or its subsidiary or any Invested Entity) who in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 120,000,000 shares, being 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at 8 April 2009,
the listing date of the Company on the Stock

Exchange.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from

time to time.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any Qualified Participants under the Share
Option Scheme in the 12-months period up to and
including such further grant must not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares in issue.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme,
after which period no further option shall be

granted.

A non-refundable consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by
an eligible person within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date
not later than 5 business days from the date on

which the offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period (which may not expire later than 10
years from the date of the grant) to be notified by

the Board at its sole discretion.

The subscription price must be at least the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant; (2) the average of the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (3) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.

(vii)

(viii)
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(x) The Board is entitled at any time within the period
of 10 years commencing on 20 February 2009
i.e. the date of adoption, to offer the grant of an
option to any Qualified Participants in accordance

with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

On 3 August 2012, 113,540,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$3.18 per share were granted
to certain Directors, a substantial shareholder of the
Company and certain employees of the Group under the
Share Option Scheme. Due to the bonus shares issued by
the Company on 31 August 2012, the exercise price of the
outstanding share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and the number of shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of the outstanding share options
were adjusted to HK$3.102 per share and 116,378,500
shares respectively with effect from 31 August 2012.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the options shall only be exercisable in respect of such
part thereof that has been vested in accordance with the

following manner:

Fraction of the shares covered under the option
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Vesting date
FEBH

First 20% of the shares under the share options

BB TN Z2E20%

Next 30% of the shares under the share options

BREBETRMOETEN30%

Remaining 50% of the shares under the share options

BB A TR N (D 2 88 T50%
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During the year under review, 1,025,000 share options
were lapsed and 74,558,500 share options were cancelled,
and no share option was granted or exercised. As at
31 March 2015, there was no outstanding share option of
the Company (2014: 75,583,500). Hence, no participant
was granted any option in excess of the individual limit as

set out under the Share Option Scheme.

At the annual general meeting held on 22 August 2014
(the “2014 AGM"), the then Shareholders duly approved
to renew the total maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
to be up to 10% of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of the 2014 AGM, which amounted to
135,474,999 shares of the Company.

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange subsequently
granted the approval for the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the shares to be issued pursuant to the renewed

Share Option Scheme mandate.
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March RZE—RAF=A=+—08 " BREFET
2015 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZARITEERE ZFIBOT
Share options granted on 3 August 2012 R-ZZE——F)\AZHERHZERE
No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Exercise Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
price involved involved involved involved involved
per Share Options in options in options in options in options in options
under held as at granted exercised lapsed cancelled held as at
Exercisable the share 1 April during the during the during the during the 31 March
Grantees period options* 2014 year year year year 2015
HKS$
K-%-1%

ERRY ERTE EREH ERiEs ZA=1-H
R-E-RE LERE LERE LERE LERE BEERE
SHREREL BA-H FoR2 foR2 fioR2 il SR

ARA s ﬁ%ﬁ* FEZRRE RGEE RGEE RGEE RB%E  zRHEE
BT
Directors;
EZ.
Wang Jindong 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3102 1,219,750 - - - (1,219,750) 0
IER “§--F\fzHZ
B Sk =
Joseph Marian 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3.102 1,219,750 - - - (1,219,750) 0
Laurence Ozorio
et “E-ZE\BZRZ
“E-CFN\AZH
Cheung Mei Sze 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3102 1,025,000 - - - (1,025,000) 0
EE 3] “§-Z%/\RzHZ
St 1 =
Wu Jie Si 3 Aug 2012 o 2 Aug 2022 3.102 1,025,000 - - - (1,025,000) 0
ZEZZENAZH
Chen Sing Hung Johnny 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3102 1,025,000 - - - (1,025,000) 0
B “E-“F)\RzHE
Z3ZZ§N\AZH
Substantial Shareholder
FERE
Luo Li (Npte i 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3.102 1,219,750 - - - (1,219,750) 0
Bl (i) “3--E\fZHZ
“ZZZENAZH
Others:
i
Other employees
of the Group 3 Aug 2012 to 2 Aug 2022 3.102 68,849,250 - - (1,025,000)  (67,824,250) 0
TEEHMES “F--f\fZHZ
ZECCENAZH
Total
o 75,583,500 - - (1,025,000)  (74,558,500) 0
* Adjusted price after the issue of the bonus shares on * RZE—ZFNA=+—HETAKEZ
31 August 2012, IS REEES -
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Notes:

(i) As at 31 March 2015, Yinji Investments Limited held
480,212,500 shares representing approximately 35.59%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The entire
issued share capital of Yinji Investments Limited is directly
owned by Grand Base Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly
wholly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of
which are Mr. Liang Guoxing, Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of
Mr. Liang Guoxing, and Miss Liang Gia Li Melody, the
daughter of Mr. Liang Guoxing. Mr. Liang Guoxing is the
chairman, an executive Director, chief executive officer
and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

(ii) Subsequent to 31 March 2015 and on 22 April 2015, the
Company granted share options to certain Directors, a
substantial Shareholder and employees of the Group to
subscribe for a total of 134,900,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company under the
Share Option Scheme. The exercise price is HK$1.09 per
share. Details of the grant of share options, including
the validity of the share options can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated on 22 April 2015.
Accordingly, options to subscribe for a total of 574,999
shares in the Company, representing approximately
0.04% of the total number of issued shares in the
Company as at the date of this report, may still be
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 March 2015, distributable reserves of the
Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$357.6 million (as
at 31 March 2014: HK$280.8 million).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the financial year are set out in note
27 to the financial statements and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Hh RZZT—AHF=ZA=Z+—H8" Yinji
Investments Limited$§ 480,212,500 i%
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i Grand Base Holdings Limited (—f R %8
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 4 in
this annual report. The summary does not form part of the

audited financial statements.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

The Group regards both the current ratio and the gearing

ratio are important indicators of its financial health.

Current Ratio

The current ratio is the balance of current assets at the
end of the financial year divided by the balance of current
liabilities at the end of the financial year. As at 31 March
2015, the current ratio was 1.5 (2014: 1.5) which means

the Group is able to meet the creditors’ demands.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, trade payables, deposits received,
other payables and accruals, bank advance for discounted
bills and amounts due to related parties and directors
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital represents
equity attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company. As at 31 March 2015, the gearing ratio was
approximately 52.3% (2014: 52.3%). From a long-term
perspective, the management is committed to maintain
an optimal and stable gearing ratio, in order to achieve

maximum capital efficiency.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
repurchased a total of 5,544,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
in the capital of its own shares on the Stock Exchange,

details of which are as follows:

=R

BE HEIWEAXAQAFzLED
i 25
RBE-E-AF=A=1+-ALFE &

NAIREE R BB O & H5,544, 00008 A A &) %
AP EFREENOE TZ AR KNG @ #F15
R

Number Highest Lowest Approximate

of shares price paid price paid aggregate

Date of repurchase repurchased per share per share  consideration

ENER ENER

e BOROHA BEER REE® BROBRE

HK$ HK$ HKS$

BT B B

2 September 2014 1,000,000 0.99 0.99 993,544
—mEAAZH

3 September 2014 3,713,000 1.05 0.98 3,782,012
—E-MEAA=R

4 September 2014 831,000 1.04 1.02 859,677
—mHENAEHA

5,544,000 5,635,233

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the par value of the repurchased shares which had
been cancelled on 17 September 2014. The repurchases
of shares were effected by the Directors pursuant to the
general mandate to repurchase shares which was duly
approved by the shareholders at the 2014 AGM.

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole with a view to

enhancing the net assets per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or
redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2015.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the financial year, the Group did not make any
charitable contributions (2014: HK$4.4 million).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the financial year and

up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Jindong (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jie Si
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan
Mr. Ma Lishan
Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward
(appointed on 24 June 2014)
Mr. Zhang Min (resigned on 1 April 2014)

Pursuant to Article 83(3), Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward,
who was appointed by the Board as independent non-
executive Director with effect from 24 June 2014, was
elected by the Shareholders at the 2014 AGM.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Wang Jindong, Mr. Wu Jie Si and
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan shall retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 38 to 49 of this annual

report.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
respective confirmations from the Directors, there is no
change in the information of the Directors required to be

disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years with the

following commencement dates:

Name of Directors

BEEnA

=R

FHESERNES
BARAFHARSHNREE SR E 0
Rk AHEFZANLEIBE LT HRRIE
1351B(NGRETHREZ 2 -

EERBEL
EEFHOEADRTIRB AL BAT
RIS AEEFH=4F -

Commencement Date

Fta B 2

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Note 1)
REE S & (K aET)

Mr. Wang Jindong (Note 2)
FEREE (ME2)

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze (Note 3)
ExXB L (HiE3)

Mr. Wu Jie Si (Note 4)
REREE (KiF4)

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny (Note 5)
BR B 96 5% A (W7 3E5)

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio (Note 6)

ol & e & (K it6)

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Note 7)
IR IR S A (B2 7)

Mr. Ma Lishan (Note 8)
B kA& (KFF8)

Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward (Note 9)
&g (K i79)

12 September 2013
—T—=FNA+=H

1 April 2013
—E—=FMA—H

6 March 2014
—ET-HmF=HXH

6 March 2014
—E—mWF=AKAH

25 September 2013
—E-=FfNAZ=t+hHA

10 April 2013
—E—=F1MA+H

6 March 2014
—ET-HmF=HXH

6 March 2014
—E—UFE=A/NH

24 June 2014
—E-mFEANAZ+IA
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Notes:

1. The previous service contract of Mr. Liang expired on
11 September 2013 and a new service contract was
entered into between the Company and Mr. Liang for a
term of three (3) years commencing from 12 September
2013.

2. The previous service contract of Mr. Wang expired on
31 March 2013 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Wang for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 1 April 2013.

3. The previous service contract of Ms. Cheung expired on
5 March 2014 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Ms. Cheung for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 6 March 2014.

4. The previous service contract of Mr. Wu expired on
5 March 2014 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Wu for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 6 March 2014.

5. The previous service contract of Mr. Chen expired on
24 September 2013 and a new service contract was
entered into between the Company and Mr. Chen for a
term of three (3) years commencing from 25 September
2013.

6. The previous service contract of Mr. Ozorio expired on
9 April 2013 and a new service contract as non-executive
Director was entered into between the Company and
Mr. Ozorio for a term of three (3) years commencing from
10 April 2013.

7. The previous service contract of Mr. Hung expired on
5 March 2014 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Hung for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 6 March 2014.

8. The previous service contract of Mr. Ma expired on
5 March 2014 and a new service contract was entered
into between the Company and Mr. Ma for a term of
three (3) years commencing from 6 March 2014.

9. Dr. Lee was appointed by the Board as independent non-

executive Director on 24 June 2014 and a three (3) years
service contract was signed on the same date.
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company and is decided
by the Board, as authorised by the Shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, having regard to the Group's
results, Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance,

and the prevailing market conditions.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have been
taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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(i)

Shares of the Company

Number or

attributable number

—
=

S
S
el
=

Approximate
percentage or
attributable

percentage

of shares held or Nature of of shareholding
Name of Director short positions Position interests of the Company
P s FE 45 IR 40 2 B RELAREBROZER
EEpA AXRHE R EEiME BoLHEEEDL
Liang Guoxing 183,930,000 (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 13.63%
corporation
REE 183,930,000 (#7##1) ) REEEE 2 # 2
480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Founder and beneficial 35.59%
object of a
discretionary trust
480,212,500 (#17t2) 1R RREFTZEAHMA
SEEIN
0 (Note 3) Long Family interest 0%
0 (H5t3) iR ERY Fad

Share Options

(i) HERxHE
Underlying shares
pursuant to the
share options as at
31 March 2015

Approximate
percentage or
attributable

percentage of

R=-ZE—8F shareholding of

Name of Directors =B=+-—H the Company

BREMSRZ RAEATRERNFR

EEnE HEARGEE BAoLESELEE DL

Wang Jindong (Note 4) BR (K iz4) 0 0%
Joseph Marian Laurence T3 (K75t 4)

Ozorio (Note 4) 0 0%
Cheung Mei Sze (Note 5) EXB(MiE5) 0 0%
Wu lie Si (Note 5) KB (HiE5) 0 0%
Chen Sing Hung Johnny (Note 5) FRFESE (K#1E5) 0 0%
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Notes:

(1

These shares were held by Keen Pearl Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and the entire issued share capital of which is owned
by Mr. Liang Guoxing, an executive Director, the
Chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

These shares were held by Yinji Investments Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Yinji Investments
Limited is beneficially owned by Grand Base Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which are Mr. Liang Guoxing,
Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang Guoxing
and Miss Liang Gia Li Melody, the daughter of
Mr. Liang Guoxing. HSBC International Trustee
Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares in
the capacity of a trustee of the discretionary trust as
aforementioned.

During the year under review, interest in 1,219,750
share options granted to Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of
Mr. Liang Guoxing under the Share Option Scheme to
subscribe the shares of the Company was cancelled.

During the year under review, 1,219,750 share
options granted to subscribe the shares of the
Company was cancelled.

During the year under review, 1,025,000 share
options granted to subscribe the shares of the
Company was cancelled.
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25 W FKeen Pearl Limited (—FR 7%
REEBREESTEMALZAR)
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SR -

ZEMRADAYinji Investments Limited
48 ° Yinji Investments Limited2Z &
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed
(i) which

were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be

to have under such provisions of the SFO); or

entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in

the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER" INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company, as at 31 March 2015, the following
persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Approximate
percentage or
attributable

percentage

Name of of shares held or Nature of of shareholding
shareholders short positions Position interests of the Company
RAEX T RE
EIEAROHE BARREI L
RRAM FAXRHE B BEME BB
Keen Pearl Limited 183,930,000 (Note 1) Long Beneficial Owner 13.63%
Keen Pearl Limited 183,930,000 (#75#1) HE EXZHAA
Yinji Investments Limited 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Beneficial Owner 35.59%
Yinji Investments Limited 480,212,500 (#172£2) HE EnEEA
Grand Base Holdings Limited 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 35.59%
corporation
Grand Base Holdings Limited 480,212,500 (fiti#2) HE REEEE 2
HSBC International 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Trustee of discretionary trust 35.59%
Trustee Limited
ELBRETAERAA 480,212,500 (fti#2) e PREERIZEA
Luo Li 480,212,500 (Notes 2 & 3)  Long Beneficial object of a 35.59%
discretionary trust
ER 480,212,500 (#f7#2K3) HA PREFRZEEA
Liang Gia Li Melody 480,212,500 (Note 2) Long Beneficial object of a 35.59%
discretionary trust
REE 480,212,500 (f712) HA PREFZZHEA
Atlantis Capital Holdings 73,000,000 (note 4) Long Interest in controlled 5.41%
Limited (“Atlantis Capital”) corporation
ARERZRER D F 73,000,000 (#1z#4) HA NEEEB 2 s
(BEREX])
Liu Yang 73,000,000 (note 4) Long Interest in controlled 5.41%
corporation
EIPX 73,000,000 (#77#4) HE N REE s

SR -HAER

o BIURE 4 T 2 IR AT B
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Notes:

These shares were held by Keen Pearl Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Liang
Guoxing, an executive Director, the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company.

These shares were held by Yinji Investments Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Yinji Investments Limited
was beneficially owned by Grand Base Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are Mr. Liang Guoxing, Ms. Luo Li, the spouse
of Mr. Liang Guoxing, and Miss. Liang Gia Li Melody,
the daughter of Mr. Liang Guoxing. HSBC International
Trustee Limited was deemed to be interested in the shares
in the capacity of a trustee of the discretionary trust as
aforementioned.

During the year under review, interest in 1,219,750 share
options granted to Ms. Luo Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang
Guoxing under the Share Option Scheme to subscribe the
shares of the Company was cancelled.

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by
each of Atlantis Capital and Liu Yang on 12 November
2014, among others, Atlantis Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Atlantis Investment”) was disclosed
as having direct interest in 73,000,000 shares and was
wholly-owned by Atlantis Capital, which in turn was
wholly-owned by Liu Yang. Therefore, Atlantis Capital and
Liu Yang are deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Atlantis Investment.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the

Directors and the chief executive of the Company were

not aware of any other person (other than Directors and

the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was

deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company which would fall

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to

be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,

or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, no contracts of significance, to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial

year or at any time during the financial year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its subsidiaries, and
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries at the
end of the financial year or at any time during the financial
year. Furthermore, there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries at the end of the financial year or at any time

during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report, at no time during the financial
year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies entered into any arrangement which enables
the existing Directors or chief executive of the Company to
have the right to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme and participating the state managed
retirement benefit scheme in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Group has not operated any other

retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s employees.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report,
no Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in

the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for around 61.0% and 86.9% of the total sales
and total purchases for the year, respectively. The Group's
largest customer and supplier accounted for around
29.5% and 44.8% of the total sales and total purchases
for the year, respectively. The purchases excluded

inventory buy-back portion.

During the financial year, none of the Directors or any of
their close associates or any Shareholders which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital, had any interest in the

Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into a number of
continuing connected transactions with the following
core connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules),

namely:

(1) Silver Base (Holdings) Limited (“SBH"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing (being also
the controlling shareholder, the chairman, the chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the

Company);
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Zhuhai Doumen Xinging Jianlong High New
Technology Industry Bonded Warehouse Limited
GRETAMFERESHHREZRTABRAR)
(“Zhuhai Jianlong”). Zhuhai Jianlong is owned as to
56% by Ms. Su Yeqing. Ms. Su is the sister-in-law
of Mr. Liang Guoxing; and

Guizhou Yaxi Cellar Liquors Distribution Co.,
Ltd. (BEMBEEBEEBRAF]) ("Guizhou Yaxi
Distribution”), a company owned as to 20% by
Mr. Liang Guofeng and 80% by Mr. Liang Guomin,

both of whom are cousins of Mr. Liang Guoxing.

During the year, the Group entered into the following

continuing connected transactions:

(a)

On 26 March 2013, Silver Base International
Development Co. Limited (”Silver Base
International”) an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement
("Tenancy Agreement”) with SBH in relation to
the leasing of House No. 8, No. 33 Island Road,
Hong Kong for the continuation and renewal of the
agreement for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2013 at a monthly rent of HK$532,800
(exclusive of management fee, rates, and all other

outgoings).

Details of the Tenancy Agreement was stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2013.

During the year, the Group paid rent to SBH
amounted to approximately HK$6,393,600 (with
the annual cap set at HK$6,400,000 for the same
period).
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On 4 October 2013, Silver Base International
entered into a framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) with Zhuhai Jianlong, pursuant to
which Zhuhai Jianlong will provide warehousing,
logistics and related services to the Group for a
term of three years commencing retrospectively
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016 (both dates

inclusive).

Details of the Framework Agreement was stated
in the Company’s announcement dated 4 October
2013.

During the year, the Group paid a sum of
approximately HK$439,507 as service fee to Zhuhai
Jianlong (with the annual cap set at HK$3,000,000

for the same period).

The distribution agreement and supplemental
agreement dated 1 April 2011 and 29 May 2013
respectively entered into by Silver Base Trading
and Development (Shenzhen) Co., Limited
(REEZEHER (RY) ER A F) ("Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as
purchaser), with Guizhou Yaxi Distribution
(as supplier), in relation to the purchase and
supply of the baijiu products expired on
30 September 2013. On 8 August 2014, Silver
Base Trading Shenzhen entered into a new
distribution agreement with Guizhou Yaxi
Distribution regarding the purchase and supply
of baijiu products for a term of three years
commencing retrospectively from 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2017 (the “2014 Distribution
Agreement”). Details of the terms and conditions
of the 2014 Distribution Agreement can be
referred to the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 8 August 2014 and
5 September 2014 respectively.
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During the year, the total procurement from
Guizhou Yaxi Distribution by Silver Base
Trading Shenzhen amounted to approximately
RMB8,344,536 (with the annual cap set at
RMB70,000,000 for the same period).

Save as disclosed above, there are no other continuing
connected transaction, which require disclosure in the

annual report in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the above transactions have been entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
during the validity of the agreements’ periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors have further

confirmed that:

The values of continuing connected transactions entered
into between the Group and its core connected persons
which are subject to annual caps have not exceeded their

respective annual caps.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions pursuant to
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised the Board in
writing (with a copy provided to the Stock Exchange) that
the transactions: (i) have been approved by the Board,
(ii) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group where the transactions
involve the provisions of goods in services by the Group;
(iii) have been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the their

respective annual caps.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The subject of sustainability has gone far beyond a
slogan to use. It is an important issue to our customers,
shareholders, government and the general public. As a
member of the globe, the Group is committed to reduce
its carbon footprint and consumption of natural resources

in all possible aspects.

Our environmental strategy is, in order to reduce the
pressure on our environment, to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services on
one hand, and greenhouse gas emissions on the other
hand. Having branches, offices and warehouses located
in various provinces in the PRC, the Group is able to
deliver our products from our warehouses to our clients
in a timely manner yet reducing amount of greenhouse
gas emitted arising from the delivery of our products.
In addition, the Group has taken proactive approach to
effect internal and external communications by means
of telephone, emails and video conferences or such
other communication methods which are efficient yet
environmental friendly, to replace traditional physical

travelling.

In order to protect our environment and reduce the
administrative expenses, the Group also encourages the
employees to switch off lights that are unnecessary during
lunch and after office hours. The Group also installed
energy efficient lighting facilities covering most of the

office space.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, the Group had complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, inter alias, Food Safety
Law of the PRC (FZE AR HEFE R B%Z 2 /%) and Measures
for the Administration of Alcohol Circulation (BEZEmBE
%), as well as major local employment regulations at
all locations of operations in the PRC.
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Forced or child labour is not of a significant concern for
the wine and liquor industry. The Group has not engaged

any forced or child labour.

Internally, to bring the operations in line with the Group’s
organisation’s commitment to the highest possible
standards of probity and accountability, a number of
policies have been adopted and shared among our
staff. These include the whistle-blowing policy, gifts
and entertainment policy and guideline on Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are the one of most
important assets and stakeholders of the Group and their

contribution and support are cherished at all time.

The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies according to industry benchmark, financial results
as well as the individual performance of employees so as
to offer fair and competitive compensation packages to
the employees. Other fringe benefits including insurance,
medical benefits and mandatory provident fund are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form a
team of professional staff and management to fulfill the

development needs of the Group.

The Group places great emphasis on the training
and development of employees and regards excellent
employees as its core competitiveness. With a view to
further enhancing their job skills and industry knowledge,
the Group has offered various training programs to its
management staff and other employees. The Group
implemented these programs not only to enhance the
quality of its staff, but also to give best chances for

development of their personal career.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

Our Directors believe that maintaining good relationships
with customers and suppliers has been one of the critical

success factors of the Group.

We have maintained long-termed relationship with our
major suppliers. Among them, Wuliangye Yibin Co., Ltd.,
one of the principal suppliers of premium baijiu products
to our Group, have had nearly a decade’s business

relationship with our Group.

With the mission to providing the finest wine and
liguor products to consumers, the Group is constantly
screening, sourcing and introducing products that can
fulfill the needs of the consumers, as well as the stringent
requirements of the Group. The Group works closely
with our existing suppliers who are also the producers of
the products that the Group is selling, to develop new
products that can create new demands from both the
potential and the existing customers. The Group believes
that it is an essential means to increase the sales of the

Group and also the sales of our suppliers.

It is the responsibility of the Group to supplying genuine
and safe products to our customers. Our products are
primarily sourced from producers that have complied
with rigorous product testing procedures, regulations and
standards of the countries in which they are produced.
There was no reported case of product safety recall during

the year.
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In order to establish new and maintain relationships
with our customers, during the year under review, we
continued to carry out various advertising and marketing
campaigns including sponsoring of booth at conventions
with the aim of promoting and attracting potential sub-
distributors, offering gifts to certain consumers who
purchased in the designated retail outlets and placing
advertisements in magazines circulated at international

duty-free conferences.

As mentioned in the chairman’s statement of this report,
the Group established partnerships with various PRC
e-commerce companies during the year under review
with business terms that are both in the interest of the
Group and those companies. The Group believes that the
mutually beneficial business terms are important to create
a win-win situation to both sides and to foster a long

termed and reliable relationship with our customers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is responsible for monitoring the business risk
and formulating plans to mitigate potential risks and
uncertainties that materially affect the business of the
Group. The following principal risks and uncertainties
may occur individually or simultaneously. There may be
additional risk unknown and other risks which the Group
currently believes to be immaterial, but turn out to be
material. If the management team identifies any other risk
to be material, the management team will report such risk
to the Board and consider to implement a mitigation plan

when appropriate.
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Risk
BB

Nature

[E31

We rely on the supply of products
from Wuliangye Yibin Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the “Wuliangye Group”).

HPEREEERRBEROHDARA T LA
MEAR((REAEE) HEER -

Regulatory decisions and changes in
the legal and regulatory environment
in the countries in which we operate
could materially and adversely affect

our business activities

BAREXRBEBRRNEEREIN R
ERMEERENE(CAHRMNER
ERELEBERIMTE -

We cannot control the quality of the

products we distribute

BB EREH S HERNE R

Since Wuliangye Group is the largest supplier of the Group, the
business and results of operations of the Group reply on, among
other things, the continued and constant supply of the products
from Wuliangye Group and the continued appointment of the
Group as the exclusive distributor of certain products by Wuliangye
Group.

HROABREERASENGARER  AEBNXEMELERE
FER(ETEH) ARAEERERENEMMP AR TRREBE#
BEZAAEERETEMNBREHES -

We operate in a highly regulated industry environment. Our
business is subject to extensive regulatory requirements regarding
production, distribution, marketing, advertising and labeling in
various countries into which we distribute our products. Regulatory
decisions or changes in the legal environments in these areas may
have material and adverse impacts to our business.
HMEXIRERENTEREPRLE - ZMOEBRETRML
HEMNTRIBERTEZNEERT  FREE - K5 MI5EH -
BEMZHEERE - PSRN EERTIEERFNE AT H M
MEBELBEATNTE -

As a distributor, we cannot control the quality of the products we
distribute. Any contaminant in those raw materials or defects in the
distillation or fermentation processes could lead to inferior quality
and/or illness among or injury to our consumers and may result in

reduced sales of the affected brand(s) or all of our brand(s).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 81 to 106, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2015.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries
to all Directors, all Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 March 2015.

The Company has received written annual confirmations
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent of the management
of the Company and are free from any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments for the financial year ended
31 March 2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out

in note 39 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

pursuant to the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee of the Company had reviewed the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2015

and provided advice and comments thereon.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year were
audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young who will retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Liang Guoxing

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong

25 June 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to high standards of corporate governance and
business ethics. The board (the “Board”) of directors
(the "Directors”) of the Company believes that good
corporate governance and business ethics are essential
for achieving sustainable development, building investors’
confidence and protecting and enhancing interests of the

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate
governance, the Board reviews the corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company from time to
time in order to meet the rising expectations of the
Shareholders and to comply with the increasing stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to

excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

Under Code Provision C.1.2, the management should
provide all members of the Board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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The management was late in providing the updates to all
members of the Board during the period under review
due to some job reallocation of staff of the Finance
Department of the Company. The management has
undertaken to the Board that they would ensure the

compliance with this Code Provision in the future.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should

not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Liang Guoxing currently serves as the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that such arrangement is in the best interest
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole since
Mr. Liang Guoxing has substantial experience in sales of
Chinese liquor in the PRC market and can strengthen the
Group's sales and marketing capabilities. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board meets regularly to consider matters
relating to the business operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that this arrangement will not impair
the balance of power and authority of the Board and the
executive management of the Company. The effectiveness
of corporate planning and implementation of corporate

strategies and decisions will not be affected.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Group. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Group and the Shareholders. The Board sets the
Group's overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and
reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
It also decides on matters such as annual and interim
results, connected and notifiable transactions, Directors’
appointments or re-appointments, and dividend and
accounting policies. The Board delegates the day-to-day

operations of the Group to the management.
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The Board meets regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals and holds additional
meetings as and when the Board thinks fit. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. At least 14-days formal notice would be
given before each regular meeting and reasonable notices
are given for all other ad hoc meetings, via the company
secretary, to the Directors and the Board procedures are
in compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.
Directors may participate either in person or through

electronic means of communication.

All minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees (as defined hereinafter) are kept by the
company secretary and are available for inspection by any

Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

The company secretary is striving to update all Directors
on the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance

and maintain good corporate governance practice.

Each newly appointed Director is offered training on
key areas of business operations of the Group. They
are offered training materials that set out the duties
and responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements
of Hong Kong. The Company also provides professional
development and training courses to the Directors as
well as the company secretary to continually update their

relevant skills and knowledge.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other relationships with each other. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in
writing his independence with regard to the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and as at
the date of this report, the Company still considers them

to be independent.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
The Company has adopted the practice to provide relevant
materials to all Directors relating to the matters brought
before the meetings at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they are given sufficient review

time.

The company secretary and the chief financial officer,
who is also an executive Director, attended all the Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance and

accounting and financial matters, as appropriate.

All the Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable
request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. A procedure for the Directors to
seek independent professional advice was established in

January 2010.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently has nine Directors: three executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors.

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhang Min as
independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2014 due to his desire to focus on his
other personal career, the number of independent non-
executive Directors fell below the minimum number as
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and the
number of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board represented less than one-third of the members
of the Board as required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the number of members of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company fell short of the requirements under Rule 3.21
and Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, and fell below the
minimum number required under the terms of reference
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Details of the composition and duties of
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company are set out in the following sections of this

report.

Following the appointment of Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward
as independent non-executive Director and member of
the audit committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company on 24 June 2014, the Company has
re-compiled with the requirements of Rule 3.10(1), Rule
3.10A, Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules as well
as the terms of reference of the audit committee and the

remuneration committee of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 38

to 46 of this report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises the benefits of board diversity
and endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance and level of skills, experience and
perspectives required to support the execution of its

business strategies.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in
order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company would consider
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to the Directors’ gender, age, cultural and educational
background and professional experience in the industry as
preferential factors, taking into account the Company’s

own business model and special features of the industry.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and will review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives.
The nomination committee of the Company will review
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its

continued effectiveness.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to
certain Board committees including the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the compliance committee
(the "Compliance Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)

(collectively, the “Board Committees”) of the Company.

any
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The responsibilities and activities of each of the Board
Committees during the review year are as follows. The
written terms of reference of the Board Committees are
in line with the respective Code Provisions (if any) and
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and has the authority to raise questions regarding the
resignation or dismissal of the auditors, reviewing of the
Group’s financial information and overseeing the Group's
financial reporting systems, internal control procedures
and risk management frameworks. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior

to recommending them to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan, who is a qualified accountant with extensive
experience in financial reporting and controls, Mr. Ma
Lishan and Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward. Mr. Hung Sui

Kwan is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year

ended 31 March 2015 is summarised below:

(@) reviewed with the external auditors the results of the
annual audit and audited report of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and the interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September
2014 together with senior management’s response
to the accounting issues and major findings in the

course of audit/review;

(b) reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial

reporting function;

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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(¢) reviewed the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group to ensure that the
transactions had been conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group and that the
terms and annual caps are fair and reasonable and in
the interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a

whole;

(d) reviewed with the senior management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls

and financial reporting matters of the Group; and

(e) reviewed the proposed audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditors of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has not
taken any view that is different from that of the Audit
Committee nor rejected any recommendation proposed by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 with the
management and the Company’s external auditors and

recommended its adoption by the Board.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the Company’s compliance with the legal
and regulatory requirements of its business operations,
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, as well as
compliance with its code of conduct and/or business ethics
policies and prevailing corporate governance practices
and standards. The Compliance Committee has reviewed
the confirmation given by Mr. Liang Guoxing and Yinji
Investments Limited of their compliance with the deed
of non-competition undertaking as disclosed in the

prospectus of the Company dated 30 March 2009.
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The Compliance Committee currently comprises three

independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung

Sui Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan and Dr. Lee Kwok Keung

Edward and one executive Director, Ms. Cheung Mei Sze.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the chairman of the Compliance

Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Compliance

Committee reviewed the following:

(a)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

the compliance reports prepared by the external
auditor together with the senior management and

make comments thereon;

the improvement measures taken by the

management to enhance the compliance procedures;

the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

the training and continuous professional

development records reported by the Directors; and

the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the announcements/report of interim
and annual results of the Company and the

Corporate Governance Report; and

the annual confirmation from Mr. Liang Guoxing
and Yinji Investments Limited. Details of the annual
confirmation are set out in the paragraphs headed

“Non-competition Undertaking” on page 99.

* Annual Report 2015
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedures for developing

remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan and Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward
and two executive Directors including Mr. Liang Guoxing
and Ms. Cheung Mei Sze. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the

chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

In determining emoluments payable to the Directors,
the Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, the commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for

the year ended 31 March 2015, is summarised below:

(a) reviewed the remuneration package of
independent non-executive Directors and made

recommendations to the Board;

(b) recommended the cancellation of the share options
granted pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted on 20 February 2009 (the “Share Option

Scheme”) but not exercised; and

(c) recommended the refreshment of the Share Option
Scheme limit which was duly approved by the then
Shareholders at the 2014 AGM subsequently.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. Currently, the Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Ma Lishan and
Dr. Lee Kwok Keung Edward and one executive Director,
Mr. Liang Guoxing. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is the Chairman of

the Nomination Committee.

The function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the
Directors, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and

transparent.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include

but are not limited to the following:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to complement the Company’s corporate

strategies;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

() to assess the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive officer;
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(e) to monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and review such policy from time to time, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy;

and

(f)  to do any such things to enable the Nomination
Committee to discharge its powers and functions

conferred on it by the Board.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the

year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

(@) assessed the independence of independent

non-executive Directors;

(b) reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and made recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to complement the

Company's corporate strategies;

() recommended the election of Dr. Lee Kwok Keung

Edward as independent non-executive Director; and

(d) recommended (i) the re-election of Ms. Cheung
Mei Sze as executive Director; (i) the re-election
of Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny as non-executive
Director; and (iii) the re-election of Mr. Ma Lishan as

independent non-executive Director.

Corporate governance functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company. The Board has
reviewed this corporate governance report in discharge
of its corporate governance functions and to ensure

compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The attendance of each Director for the Board meetings
and the Board Committee meetings held during the year

ended 31 March 2015 is set out in the following table:

TREINZEEERBE-_T—AF=H
ST HLEFEZESEERREFTERE
BEHRMLFEER

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

hipa- VL Uhra-+
Annual  Extraordinary

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination Compliance General General
Directors Board  Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
gz Eze ENZRE  EMZRE  REZRE  4RERT RREEAE  RRNHAE
Executive Directors UrEs
M. Liang Guoxing (Chairman and 2ERLE 1010 NATEE 0 0 NIATE R l 111

chief executive officer) ($EF7IR#EH)

Mr. Wang lindong (chief financial officer)  TERXE(EHFLE) 1010 NATEE NIATEF NIATEF NATMEE " i
Ms. Cheung Mei Sze EXERL 1010 NATEE 0 NIATE R 0 1 111
Non-Executive Directors FurEs
Mr. W Jie Si RREELE 1010 NAMER AR AR AR i "
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny REEEE 1010 NATER NIATER NATER NIATER /1 0t
. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio fEEEE 010 NATEE NIATEE NIATEE NIATEE 1 01
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BI %4752
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan ps:bits 1010 0N 0N 0 0N 1 i
Mr. Ma Lishan Sulks 10710 22 22 22 22 11 171
Dr. Lee Kwok Keung (Note 1) ZERELE) 99 0 " " 0 " "
Note 1: Following the resignation of Mr. Zhang Min as Mgt - REREER-_Z—NENA—BEE

independent non-executive Director and member
of each of the Board Committees of the Company
with effect from 1 April 2014, Dr. Lee Kwok Keung
Edward was appointed as independent non-executive
Director and member of the Board Committees on
24 June 2014.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Through continuous professional development, the
Directors are kept informed on a periodic basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including

relevant rules and regulations.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development and the latest
development to refresh their knowledge and skills for
discharging their duties and responsibilities as Directors
of the Company. Directors are requested to provide the
Company with their respective training record pursuant to
Code Provision A.6.5. According to the records maintained
by the Company, during the year under review, the
Directors participated in continuous professional
development by (i) attending external seminars, training
courses, conferences and programs; or (ii) reading relevant
materials and updates, relating to corporate governance
practices, directors’ duties, Listing Rules, relevant laws
and regulations, and business development of the baijiu

industry.

(e Salkia
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The individual training record of each Director received for

the year under review is summarised below:

Name of Director

TSRS AR B U A
ZAAEYIRLE -

Type of continuous professional development

FREXZRZER

attending internal briefings and

external seminars,
training courses,
conferences and programs

SEABHHREUR

reading relevant

materials and updates

IREBROTFE - FEMERERR
EEpgR BIIRE - FBERRE RHHE
Executive Directors BITES
Liang Guoxing 26 H - v
Wang Jindong FER v v
Cheung Mei Sze EXR - v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wu Jie Si HES v v
Chen Sing Hung Johnny IR B2 % v v
Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio i 4 v/ v
Independent Non-executive BN FHITES

Directors

Hung Sui Kwan H I p v v
Ma Lishan RV - v
Lee Kwok Keung Edward EETE: - v
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DIRECTORS’'S AND OFFICER'S INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and

officers.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the Shareholders
in a general meeting or by the Board upon the
recommendation from the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will take into consideration criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment
in appointment of new Directors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of
the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Board
Composition” in this report, during the year ended
31 March 2015, the Company has complied with
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of a sufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors and at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

(e Salkia
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All Directors, including the non-executive Directors,
are appointed for a fixed term of three years. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company. New Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy during
any year are required to retire and submit themselves for
election at the first general meeting immediately following
their appointments. Further, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) are required to
retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least

once every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year
under review are set out in note 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) for the year under review by

band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)
e E (Bon)

FMBEZ(BRFNTES) 2ZEFHER]
R=F - WEARARABITHRRBFA
SLWmESE WA ERBEEME - NEM
FENEEFTSAARKTRE TN
EFENALEEBABRZTIRNBEARREAS
FPRE - WAEREE - G RERERRE
BFEAGLAA=DZ— (RWMEFREIAH
TRZMEE ARBIENPR=02—)
MERETERRE MEBUEEFHAS=
FERRBAFAELEVRE—R-

ESENREREEENETN

EENEBEFENTFHFBEN GRSV HR
M8

RIRFRIA ST ANEXEBASG S RERE
B (BERIN) IO FENFE H MR
BT

Number of individuals
A

0 to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 4,000,000
4,000,001 to 5,000,000
5,000,001 to 6,000,000
6,000,001 to 7,000,000

0%1,000,000

1,000,001%2,000,000
2,000,001%3,000,000
3,000,001%4,000,000
4,000,001%5,000,000
5,000,001%6,000,000
6,000,001%7,000,000
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March
2015.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”, on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for securities
transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in

possession of inside information of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING
The Company has been confirmed by Mr. Liang Guoxing

and Yinji Investments Limited that (i) each of them has
complied with the undertaking contained in the deed
of non-competition undertaking dated 25 March 2009
executed by them in favour of the Group; and (i) each
of them and/or their respective associates is not offered
or aware of any new project or business opportunity that
directly or indirectly engages in or becomes interested
in any business carried on by any member of the Group
from time to time or in which any member of the Group is

engaged or has invested or is otherwise involved in.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
With the support of the Audit Committee, the Board
conducts a review and assessments of the Group’s
internal control system on a bi-annual basis to ensure its

effectiveness.

(e Salkia
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The internal audit department of the Company is
responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of internal
control procedures and compliance with policies and
standards of the Group. It has full access to review all
aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls.
All types of audited reports are circulated to the Audit
Committee and key management which will follow up
with the corrective actions based on the recommendations

made by the internal audit department.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, coupled
with the assistance of the chief financial officer, the
company secretary and the internal audit department, has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control, covering major financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management
functions for the year ended 31 March 2015. The Group's
system of internal control includes the setting up of
a management structure with limits of authority, and
is designed to help the Group to achieve its business
objectives, protect its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives. After reviewing the Group’s internal control
system, the Board considers that the internal control
system is effective and adequate for the Group as a whole.
The Board further considers that (i) there was no material
issues relating to the internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group; and (ii) there were adequate staff
with appropriate qualification and experience, resources
for accounting and financial reporting function, and
adequate training programmes and budget have been

provided during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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In early 2015, one of our subsidiaries had been issued
demand for payment of outstanding rent and other
expenses. Among others, the incident was due to certain
omissions on the part of the Group’s department in
charge of payables which led to delay of payment. The
Board considers this was an exceptional incident and did
not affect the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
system of internal control as a whole during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS" AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of accounts of each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing the accounts of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and have applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts

on the going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015 which were prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting

standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Group on the financial statements of the Group are set

out on pages 107 to 109 of this annual report.

(e Salkia
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The Directors have confirmed that the Company has the
ability to continue as a going concern. Your attention
is also drawn to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 117 to 122 of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

Messrs. Ernst & Young has been appointed as the external
auditors of the Company by the Shareholders at the
2014 AGM of the Company. During the year ended
31 March 2015, the fees paid/payable to Messrs. Ernst &
Young in respect of audit and non-audit services provided

to the Group were as follows:

EE®RARA AR
Sh - 1B M T EIARNFREITEI22EZ
BOT I mRMEE2.1

P B o |l

SNES R M 2 B <&
RABIMEHHFNAAT =T —MFRE
BEAE LEREETAARQRZIHBE
YH - RBE-F-RF=A=1—ALHF
B BhIA SR R G e AR R A T R
BB/ B T 2k B 56 25 75 57 0 2 B
mF :

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2015 2014

BE-ZE—1F #HE-_ZT—NF

=A=+—H =A=+—H

IEEE HFE

HK$ HK$

Type of services REESE BT BT
Audit services 1% ER 7% 2,500,000 2,650,000
Non-audit services FIERZ BUR TS 1,060,000 1,347,000
Total st 3,560,000 3,997,000

The non-audit services include interim review fee and tax

consultation fee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Chairman and
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. During the year under review,
Ms. Fok Pik Yi Carol, the company secretary of the
Company for the period from 1 April 2014 to 5 April
2014, and Mr. Wong Hing Keung, the company secretary
of the Company for the period from 6 April 2014 to
31 March 2015, have complied with the professional

training requirements under the Code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with the Shareholders and
investors in general. The various formal channels via which
the Company communicates with its Shareholders include
interim and annual reports, information on the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites, and general

meetings.

The Company holds press and analyst’s conferences
from time to time at which the executive Directors and
senior management of the Group are available to answer
questions regarding the performance of the Group. The
Company also arranged analysts’ briefings and road shows

after its annual and interim results announcements.

SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

The Company recognises its responsibility to look after the

interests of its Shareholders.

A written Shareholders Communication Policy approved by

the Board is available on the Company’s website.

All notice of general meetings despatched by the
Company to the Shareholders have been sent in the case
of annual general meeting at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and in the case of extraordinary
general meetings (an “"EGM") at least 10 clear business
days before such meetings. Shareholders are encouraged
by the Company to attend the Company’s general
meetings where the chairman of the Board, the Directors
including the chairman of the audit committee and the
external auditors are available to answer questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings

on each substantially separate issue.

(e Salkia
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The Company is aware of its obligations under the Listing
Rules in relation to the disclosure of inside information
and has established procedures to ensure that all
communications with the public, including the investment
community and the media, are fair, and that material non-

public information is not disseminated on a selection basis.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company can deposit a written
requisition to convene an EGM at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong at the address stated on page 7
of this annual report for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The same procedure also applies to any proposal

to be tabled at general meetings for adoption.

The written requisition must state the objects of the
meeting together with proposals to be put forward at such
meeting, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by

one or more of those Shareholders.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share
registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM after the deposit of such
requisition by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the Shareholders. Such
EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. On the contrary, if the requisition has
been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM

will not be convened as requested.
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If within twenty-one days of the deposit of a requisition
which is proper and in order, the Board fails to proceed
to convene an EGM, the requisitionist(s) may convene
an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board to convene the EGM shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put
to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information
of the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the head office of
the Company in Hong Kong at the address stated on page
7 of this annual report for the attention of the Company

Secretary.

The procedures for a Shareholder to propose

a person for election as a director of the
Company

A Shareholder may propose a person for election as a
director of the Company at the general meeting of the
Company by lodging the following documents at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address stated
on page 7 of this annual report for the attention of the

Company Secretary:

(e Salkia
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1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a director of the Company in

which the following information should be included:

(a) the biographical details of that person as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;

and

(b) the contact details of the proposing

Shareholder and that person.

2. a notice in writing by that person of his willingness

to be elected as a director of the Company.

Such notice shall be lodged at least seven clear days
before the date of the general meeting and the period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting. If the notice is received less than fourteen clear
days and ten clear business days prior to the date of such
general meeting, the Company will need to consider the
adjournment of such general meeting in order to give the

Shareholders sufficient notice of the proposal.

The Company did not make any changes to its

constitutional document during the year under review.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

EY =x

To the shareholders of Silver Base Group Holdings
Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 110 to 224, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

3 7 A% S o e

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of
the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our conclusion, we draw attention to
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements which
indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated net loss
of HK$19,437,000 during the year ended 31 March 2015,
and the Group had net cash outflows from operating
activities of approximately HK$35,782,000 and net cash
outflows used in investing activities of approximately
HK$7,281,000. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As explained in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent
on the Group’s ability to extend its short-term borrowings
upon maturity, source additional debt financing and
refinance its existing indebtedness; and to improve its
operation to generate adequate cash flows to meet the
Group’s financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

CRiRiE ¥

Year ended 31 March 2015 —Z—RF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014

—E-RF —F-mEF

Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000

B 5 TR FHET

REVENUE Y 2 5 418,865 489,133

Cost of sales HERM A (336,182) (652,282)

Gross profit/(loss) EF,(18) 82,683 (163,149)

Other income and gains, net H A Rz OFFE) 5 1,084 6,486

Selling and distribution expenses HENMKHER (180,141) (221,399)

Administrative expenses THER (110,719) (135,127)
Write-back of impairment/ BB (E,

(impairment), net CRiE) CF58) 170,948 (234,041)
Finance costs B & AR 6 (30,808) (40,374)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRFLRIE 1B 7 (66,953) (787,604)
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisfiEe, (BR) 10 47,516 (436)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER (19,437) (788,040)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEqG -

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF AAFEBEZFEEA

THE COMPANY 1 (19,098) (787,356)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEE R (339) (684)
(19,437) (788,040)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZAAQAFEEREREZFEA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EtERER

THE COMPANY
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR K #5E (5D 12 (1.41) (58.12)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o OF i A\

Year ended 31 March 2015 —Z—FH&=A=1+—HILEE

2015 2014
—E—1fF —ET—F
HK$’'000 HK$" 000
FET FE T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE (19,437) (788,040)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HtZEURA
Other comprehensive income to be RABBABEET B
reclassified/reclassified EEFHEEEEZ
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  Efth 2 E U A :
Exchange differences on translation BREFINETEFTE £ 8
of foreign operations ME W 2= &R 1,093 25,363
Realisation of exchange fluctuation B fi# AR BT B A 7
reserve upon dissolution i & 38 SN K BY 7
of subsidiaries 150 -
o Ny o 111
Net other comprehensive income REZBEEETR LB
to be reclassified/reclassified BEHN EEERZ
to profit or loss in subsequent periods £ fth & & Ug A JF 58 1,243 25,363
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHME2ERKA - NKRHHIE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1,243 25,363
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXHERER
FOR THE YEAR (18,194) (762,677)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: G
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS KATREREZHEA
OF THE COMPANY (17,855) (761,993)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEE B R (339) (684)
(18,194) (762,677)

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o DR B B IR DL

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EHE —mF
NO’E\eS HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L o & 13 12,829 23,982
Investment property WA 14 6,711 6,920
Intangible asset BYRE 15 8,300 8,300
Deposits b geia 19 3,277 7,107
Total non-current assets EREEEE 31,117 46,309
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories EE 17 758,305 796,264
Trade receivables W E 55k 18 18 1,155 32,057
Bills receivable FH&HF 18 74,613 18,157
Prepayments, deposits and SEENE IR ?Zi/i\&
other receivables Emﬁéuﬂzm 19 366,263 360,204
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 7 18 - 14,464
Pledged deposit [ELR e 20 15,150 8,826
Cash and cash equivalents B kBESEEY 20 170,058 82,340
Total current assets mEN B E LR 1,385,544 1,312,312
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables BN E S 0E 21 3,857 3,675
Deposits received, other payables BEWET & - Efb BRI
and accruals NESTaE 22 168,254 206,991
Bank advance for discounted bills SRITRAIR RIBEE R 18 73,540 20,805
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EERTT R E A
borrowings f:ia“% 23 453,897 354,548
Due to related parties &1~ B ESE 75 SRR 33 4,313 160
Due to directors BN EEFKIE 33 28,872 48,827
Tax payable JE 1~ ¢ I8 171,954 219,629
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 904,687 854,635
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 480,857 457,677
Net assets BESFE 511,974 503,986
EQUITY P
Equity attributable to ordinary EAREBEZFFA
equity holders of the Company B
Issued capital BEITRA 25 134,921 135,475
Reserves ] 27(a) 378,047 369,166
512,968 504,641
Non-controlling interests IF £ il 1 RE 2R (994) (655)
Total equity e 511,974 503,986
R E ETER
Liang Guoxing Wang Jindong
EZE EZ
Director Director

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

s 3 R 3%
o P RE 25 58
Year ended 31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

LFS

FARERREREARK
Retained
Share Capital ~ Share Statutory  Exchange profits/ Non-
Issued ~premium  Capital redemption ~option  surplus fluctuation (accumulated controlling ~~ Total
captal  account  reserve reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve  losses)  Total interests  equity
Bh Ex  ERE £ ME REAR/ P
ERfRA  REE EARE GEEE @R EMORE REGE (ZHER) % 0 EE ER4E
Notes HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'00D  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it Tir  Thr  fér TRr  TEr  TRr  TEr  TRr  TEr  TEr  TErn
(note 27(3)) (note 2713
(2T (2!

At1 Aprl 2013 R-Z-ZEMA-A 135475 485148 (380) 1000 63319 71462 131295 36264 1233583 09 123361
Lossfor the year ERER - - - - (7356 (187356 (684 (788040)
Other comprehensveincome~ EEEB2ARA -
for the year:
Bxchange differences on BEENSHfRLD
tranlaton of freign EpZE
operations - - - - 15383 - D538 15,363
Totel comprehensive incomel~ ER2ANA/
(loss] for the year (B)a% = = = 25363 (7813%) (761,993 (684)  (762,677)
Fuitysettled sharecption.~~ HER 5 7 BRfERH
arrangements 16 - - - 30 - - - 3306 33,051
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - (867 - - e - =
At 31 March 2014 and R-5-REZA=1-AR
at 1 Apil 2014 A-E-MERA-A 135475 485,148 (380 1000t 7%+  7IdG2F  156,658% (432420 504,641 (655) 503,986
Lossfor the year EREE - - - - (1909) (1908 (39 (19437
Other comprehensveincome~ EEEB2ARA -
for the year:
Bxchange differences on PEENSHfRLD
tranlaton of freign EpZE
operations - - - - 1,093 - 1,093 1,093
Realiston of RENELT
exchange fluctution NEENERDGRR
reserve upon dissolution
of subsidaries - - - - 150 150 - 150
Totel comprehensive incomel~ ER2ANA/
(os) forthe year (BB EE - - - 1243 (1909) (1785 (39 (1819
Fuitysettled share cption. W B E 7 B RS
arrangements 26 - - - 317% - - - 317% 31.7%
Shareoptions apsedand.~ BRERARBEE
cancelled - - - (119.494) - - 11949 - - -
Repurchase of shares BB 2 (554)  (5060) 554 - - - b (5614 - 61
At 31 March 2015 S L3 134921 480,068* (380 1,504 - 146 157901% (331578 512,968 (994) 51,974

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$378,047,000 (2014: HK$369,166,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

* ZEREREEAHBMBAARANS

% #378,047,0008 L (= F — /0 F :
369,166,000/ 7T) ©

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A B ERER

Year ended 31 March 2015 —E—HAF&=A=+—HILEFE

2015 2014
—E-EfF —E-mF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM EETHNRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI EE (66,953) (787,604)
Adjustments for: AT R IE e TR
Interest income B A 5 (431) (5,115)
Finance costs BME KA 6 30,808 40,374
Depreciation e 7 15,043 9,916
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment HBIEE 2 BB 7 22 553
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries BB ARMNERE 7 150 -
Impairment allowance of JEWE 55 IE 2
trade receivables VKR 7 504 437,411
Impairment allowance of W ER 2 REREE
bills receivable 7 - 7,161
Write-back of impairment BEEKEZHIB L
allowance of trade receivables AR 7 (152,003) (250,748)
Write-back of impairment BOERER 2 7 (7,054) =
allowance of bills receivable AR
Impairment allowance of prepayments &5 518 & £ fth & U
and other receivables FRIE 2 R E R 7 240 53,720
Write-back of impairment allowance BEITBM KB R E A
of prepayments and other receivables JE W SR I8 2 RE B 7 (12,635) (13,503)
Provision for inventories in respect of BN = 237 )%E
write-down to net realisable value ZTEE#EE 7 21,517 174,535
Equity-settled share option expense NEREE CBRIEE R 7 31,796 33,051
(138,996) (300,249)
Decrease in inventories FErd 28 106,572 415,560
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 2 R IB R 28 39,313 14,311
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable U E R, (35 ) (49,402) 70,903
Decrease in prepayments, BRAIE - Re kEMm
deposits and other receivables JE LT R TB R 28 10,166 100,833
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B E S5mEEm/ i) 182 (200,180)
Increase in deposits received, BETE HfEAFIER
other payables and accruals FEET A BN 28 11,503 50,054
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSHTE (FH)
changes, net 952 25,075
Cash generated from/(used in) BEMB/ (A HEE
operations (19,710) 176,307
Interest received B U F & 28 431 6,824
Interest paid BERFE 28 (30,808) (41,202)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded ERERBEFERNGEH 14,500 =
Elsewhere tax paid BN E 34 [ 7 I8 (195) (31)
Net cash flows from/(used in) LEESHG(FA)
operating activities MRS REFE (35,782) 141,898
continued/...

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Ao B EREE

Year ended 31 March 2015 —Z—FH&=A=1+—HILEE

2015 2014
“E-EF —ZE-mE
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
B 3 FBER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM REZFBNHEERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWME  BEIRE
plant and equipment HA 13, 28 (972) (5,599)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposit 2 HEBFFURL /(4 0) (6,324) 243,316
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREHZE (FH)
changes, net 15 2,186
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & & EEFTE,/ (FFA)
activities HNIREMEFRE (7,281) 239,903
CASH FLOWS FROM METHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in amounts due e E EFHIBR A
to directors (19,955) (76,077)
Increase in amounts due to JE 1< B B 75 SR IB AL N
related parties 4,153 160
Increase/(decrease) in bank advance for RITRNIR ZE BN,
discounted bills (B2 52,735 (74,162)
New bank and other loans and IBRITREMETAR
trust receipt loans EEBIBEE R 560,762 611,537
Repayment of bank and other loans ERRITREMETIAK
and trust receipt loans EFRREER (461,413) (1,079,949)
Shares repurchased EAElEh) 25 (5,614) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEFBME (FTA)
financing activities HIREREFH 130,668 (618,491)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERBREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #gm,/ ()R8 87,605 (236,690)
Cash and cash equivalents FMHReRACEEBD
at beginning of year 82,340 317,357
Effect of foreign exchange EXSFHTE(FH)
rate changes, net 113 1,673
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRAEZEY
AT END OF YEAR 170,058 82,340
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRRSZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EROM
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 20 170,058 82,340

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LR FINY

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=A=+—H

2015 2014
ZE-EF —T—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
B 5 FET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSET EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARIMKE 16 492,345 503,817
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Deposits and other receivables e K& E b fE IR SRR 19 - 5
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 20 664 171
Total current assets mENE EARE 664 176
CURRENT LIABILITY REAE
Accruals EEtaE 22 454 7
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 210 169
Net assets BEFE 492,555 503,986
EQUITY B
Issued capital BEITRA 25 134,921 135,475
Reserves 1 27(b) 357,634 368,511
Total equity 1 m HAFE 492,555 503,986
25 H EFER
Liang Guoxing Wang Jindong
EZE EZE
Director Director

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015



2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 12
September 2007. The registered office of the
Company is located at the office of Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, whose address is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at 27th Floor, Hysan Place, 500 Hennessy
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the distribution of Wuliangye (Ff&®&) liquor
series, National Cellar 1573 baijiu with 43% alcohol
content, Kweichow Moutai Chiew products, Fen
Wine with 55% alcohol content liquor series, Red
Fen Shijia liquor series, Yaxi Classic liquor series
and Old Vintage liquor series, wine, foreign liquor
series and Chinese cigarettes. Details of the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which, because the Company has not
early adopted the revised Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), are those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

NEAER
REEBIERBRAR(TEARAR]D R
— T HFNA+_BEREHRETE
ML R/RXHREBER QA - RA AT
fit % = &2 iz A Codan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited® i A = - ik A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands ° AR BEBRBHNEE
S B AL PO B B B 3 S B B 5538500
SAEES2718 -

AR REKBAR (KB AEE])
MNEZEBALCHEARBRABRY - BE
1573Z543E8 - EMNFEBER 5
JBS5E &5~ 4Dt R RS B8R R
Ry - BERY) - HEE FHEEY R
PREE FEMBARNEEERF
IBER B KM FE16 o

mERERE

AP BHRTIREF B SRS HEM
MEEVMBREER ((FEPBRSE
ZA D (BT BEMEERMBREE
A FEeEA([HEEtEA]) &
2B FEARGTRAUNRFTEAA
Pl B EERE (RIRATR B 2 A 5P
(FRNRE)WERERT - REASARRIAL
BERAKNEEBAXZMERRAA
(TBEXFT ) A B RT E 55 L AR Al
(TEMARAD) R - NFHHKR IR
BESLRAERE - A BHRRIABTT
(BT 27 - REBEEBIN A
BEEHNEEREONTA -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBLEKE (F&)

118

Going concern basis

The Group recorded revenue and a consolidated net
loss of HK$418,865,000 (2014: HK$489,133,000)
and HK$19,437,000 (2014: HK$788,040,000),
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2015.
Excluding the write-back of impairment, net of
HK$170,948,000, the Group recorded a consolidated
net loss of HK$190,385,000 for the year, which
included (i) provision for inventories in respect of
write-down to net realisable value amounting to
HK$21,517,000 (2014: HK$174,535,000); and (ii)
share option expense amounting to HK$31,796,000
(2014: HK$33,051,000). These non-cash items had
not affected the Group’s operating cash flows. The
Group had net cash outflows used in operating
activities of approximately HK$35,782,000 (2014:
net cash inflows of approximately HK$141,898,000)
and net cash outflows used in investing activities of
approximately HK$7,281,000 (2014: net cash inflows
of approximately HK$239,903,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
net current assets of HK$480,857,000 (2014:
HK$457,677,000), which included inventories
of HK$758,305,000 (2014: HK$796,264,000),
trade receivables of HK$1,155,000 (2014:
HK$32,057,000), pledged deposit of HK$15,150,000
(2014: HK$8,826,000), cash and cash equivalents
of HK$170,058,000 (2014: HK$82,340,000),
and outstanding bank and other loans of
HK$453,897,000 (2014: HK$354,548,000), which
were due for repayment or renewal within the next
twelve months after 31 March 2015.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

RRE R H A
AEBRBEE-_TE—RAF=ZA=+—
HEFESRSEXEREHEREF
% 5§l £418,865,0005 7T (= & — Y
% 1 489,133,000/ ) K& 19,437,000
B (ZZF — 4 : 788,040,000
B r) o Wi 170,948,000 T &Y
BOomE (FHE)  AEE&EFF
& #t % E#E190,385,000% 7T °
EREEOEBMREJEEF
BEzHFEE#EHE21,517,0008 ¢ (=
T —PY 4 : 174,535,000 L) : &
(iEB A% # 2 A 531,796,0008 70 (=&
— DU 4 : 33,051,000 JT) ° 1= LLFEIR
SHEUREVERAEENEER S
B -BHE-_ZET—ARF=A=+—A81t
FE AEBNEESTDAIARESR
5 %8 4935,782,000/8 7T (=T — PO 4F :
WERAFFEL141,898,000/8 1) Ki%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the

Company have given consideration to the future

liquidity and performance of the Group and its

available sources of finance in assessing whether

the Group will have sufficient financial resources to

continue as a going concern.

In order to improve the Group’'s liquidity and cash

flows to sustain the Group as a going concern,

the Group implemented or is in the process of

implementing the following measures:

(1)

Bank facilities

Subsequent to 31 March 2015, in April 2015,
the Group has successfully obtained a new
short-term bank loan of RMB235 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$295 million)
from a bank in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), of which RMB55 million (equivalent
to HK$69 million) will be due for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period, for the Group’s partial
repayment of short-term bank loans of RMB240
million (equivalent to approximately HK$303
million) due in April 2015. In addition, in May
2015, the Group has successfully obtained a
new bank loan of RMB20 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$25 million) from another
PRC bank, which will be due for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Bank facilities (continued)

The Group will actively negotiate with the
PRC banks for the renewal of the Group’s
PRC bank borrowings when they fall due to
secure necessary facilities to meet the Group’s
working capital and financial requirements in
the near future. The directors of the Company
have evaluated all the relevant facts available
to them and are of the opinion that there have
a good track record or relationship with the
banks which will enhance the Group's ability to

renew the Group’s PRC bank loans upon expiry.

Fund raising activities

The Group will actively seek opportunities to
carry out fund raising activities including but
not limited to issuance of bonds as alternative
sources of funding. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the Group has issued
unlisted bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 for the Group’'s

working capital.

Financial support from a substantial
shareholder of the Company

In order to strengthen the capital base of the
Group and to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows,
and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going
concern, Mr. Liang Guoxing (“Mr. Liang”), an
executive director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company, has agreed to provide

continuous financial support to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(4) Attainment of profitable and positive cash
flow operations

The Group is taking measures to tighten
cost controls over various costs and expenses
and to seek new investment and business
opportunities with the aim to attain profitable
and positive cash flow operations.

In addition, the Group will actively expand its
middle to low-end product lines for the existing
national brand in order to enhance market
position in the baijiu industry and diversify

sources of revenue.

After taking into account the above measures, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and financial obligations as and when
they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a

going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts and to provide for any future liabilities
which might arise. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2015. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEE (F)

122

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i)
the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits/(accumulated losses),
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.
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AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised

standards and a new interpretation for the first time

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and BESHERNEDNRY  PRLEALHEEY
Financial Liabilities EHE by
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures BBeERE6RN  REALEEEH TR
for Non-Financial Assets CHE TF
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives BB EHRERE39% 6 ITETRHEE REH
and Continuation of Hedge CHES i E
Accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies B (EARRRERE HF
Z88)-REENE 123
Amendment to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition' FENEELR (ZF-FF EERHNTEE
included in Annual EFoF—FHH)
Improvements FreEnaBnBRE
2010-2012 Cycle ERE2RABER
Amendment to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent FENERL (ZE—FF EFAHFHIARNE
included in Annual Consideration in a Business EF-—FHH) Bit

Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

Investment Entities

Combination’

Short-term Receivables

and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
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The adoption of the above revised standards and
interpretation has had no significant financial effect

on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 March
2015, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

g Effective for annual

1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual

1 January 2016

E Effective for annual

1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual

1 January 2018

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs!

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?

periods beginning on or after
periods beginning on or after
periods beginning on or after

periods beginning on or after

2 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for
its annual financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the

Group
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 March 2016. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of

the impact of these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2017 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND 2.3 EARERM 2 FE] REBIERT B
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NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED
(continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Except for those described
in note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments for the accounting period commencing
from 1 April 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the amendment most applicable to

the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments. Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a
reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is
only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is

reported to the chief operating decision maker.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
any significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

TSR E I LA R &8 A B
PIT 2 BERE (&)

R-ZF—NF— ARGNE B HRE
BRI FRENERE (—F—FFE_F
——FRH) BN AR RN REE
AlZZ B8R ° B?Bﬁ?z 2FTtE SN - REE
BHE T -RAFHUA - HABNE
HHFEJt%miJNEZ%{ 7] c RHIRZFERTH
" EHAKERBREAMBTE - &E
RARAEENERTFBOT

BB HREERESHAE DG - &
EEBNERS SIS ®REERFESHR
NE RS IZERVUARBEE R EEDD
HIET - BIEFEREKEE D BB A K&
AR ED 2T EUR RSB -
HEBINER N EAERBEENY
REEZHERSTEELCERRALZ
BN TR -

REBRERZENT REET BB
BmEENRERERAREZEETT
it BERESEZINI REBE
B BREENSTHHELEEERMY
BRRELEERVE

o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other

vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERESTHEME (&)

128

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property at fair
value for the disclosure in the note to the financial
statements at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent

with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and
building held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such property is stated at cost, including
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and is depreciated on
the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the

property over its estimated useful life of 50 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the

retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite

to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through

profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation and the loss arising from impairment

are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

2.4 ERETBERBE (&)

TWMEE (&)

HZqT 2

B B K B W R TR 4R Y 5 B E 3R] B E A
REeBANENERTSRENIFITE
TREE NRUITFER ELEEH
18 DA IR 202K i 8 5 B A R ) JRL B
RIRIRET & o BHAAE RAERKREIT
EXEE  BERAERNRmAKE
D EVE R SRACA o BRI R 5 MR E
PREARMBIREESRTER

RIFFERTRMEE
ETHER  emEE (3 (W@Em) 1
NEMEEXREEREEN—D)
MR LR IFPHER (B ARENE
PR BN KR APBER)

e WHMEEMBSREARENENE
m

s AKBCHEBRUBBEEMSRS
MENERN  HBREIEN] L
HRAFE=ND2BXNABRER
EATAHRERER  R@a)AE
BoEREENBAMDER R
B 7 ()N & B I 88 3 AR
BEENBRED AR KLER - 8
BREEMTHE-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has

been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement

of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net

of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of

the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which

are not restricted as to use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or

loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised either in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the

following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such
paid leave earned during the year by the employees
and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits
(continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with

the rules of the central pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity

instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants after 20 February 2009 is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial option pricing
model, further details of which are given in note 26

to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in

the impairment test.

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution
of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue
for withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends from certain subsidiaries according to
the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement
on the timing of the payment of the dividend.
The Group considered that if the profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future, then no

withholding taxes should be provided.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

B RS HE R A (&)

H g (%)
AEERETEERTHERMERBE
BEYEERENENEEIBEERS
ZITEHIE - LERFENL T EHEE
(EEERLREFEEEBENSH
AREFEEEEENEHTIBEE
QRFEEREEXR LR EE
MAKRRERENREFEELTITE
ENREE MO)ERMRESRERNR
REMEANIERE  EREZTHE
METARREZEA M ERE - d
WEETEE R E R REKRFATEANR
&® o BERSAETRBAARAMNRIR X
SIBRE - Al g EIRERI AT E R AR
EFBERERNTE -

2R EE L TR IR

AEERBHBRGEBANRERR
MEBARSERSMEENENN - 2
BEMRBUAN R B X MR - AEE
R MEBBNETERATRKERS
& - BN REEHRTBII B 4 o

SRR - SUREEERARAE

151



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
current market conditions, historical experience of
selling merchandise of similar nature and estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the provision amount requires management’s
estimates and judgements. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the carrying value of inventories and the
provision amount in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. As at 31 March
2015, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$758,305,000 (2014: HK$796,264,000).

Income and other tax

The Group has exposure to income and other taxes
in various jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
involved in determining the provision for income
and other taxes. There are certain transactions
and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises income and
other tax liabilities based on estimated assessable
profits, the rate of tax prevailing in the countries
of operation, and the existing tax legislations,
interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.
Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recognised, such
differences will impact the income and other tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of
the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation will be made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed, at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances. As at 31 March 2015, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was HK$12,829,000 (2014: HK$23,982,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowance of trade receivables, bills
receivable and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the
impairment allowance of trade receivables, bills
receivable and other receivables in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2.4. Such
impairment allowance is established if there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. The Group’s estimation
of impairment allowance of trade receivables,
bills receivable and other receivables reflects its
best estimate of amounts that are potentially
uncollectible. This determination requires significant
judgement. The Group’s customers mainly are
distributors of liquor products, and they vary in size
and types of products to be distributed. In making
the judgement on the impairment allowance, the
Group evaluates, among certain economic factors
specific to each debtor and other factors, the
historical and current year payment pattern and
creditworthiness of each debtor, the default rates of
current and prior years, aging of receivable balances,
and the latest communication with individual
debtors. To the extent the financial condition of any
debtor deteriorates which results in an inability to
make payments on time, or the debtors significantly
exceed their credit term and ask for payment
extension, or if the Group incurs more bad debt
than their original estimates, additional impairment
allowance may be required. This assessment is
based on the specific facts and circumstances
of each customer. Management reassesses the
impairment allowance at the end of each of the
reporting periods to ensure the current impairment
allowance is still appropriate. As at 31 March 2015,
the carrying amounts of trade receivables, bills
receivable and other receivables were HK$1,155,000
(2014: HK$32,057,000), HK$74,613,000 (2014:
HK$18,157,000) and HK$41,491,000 (2014:
HK$32,538,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm's
length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

ERSFTHE R M5 (&)

fEEt N iEE R = ()

FF & § A E B 1E

RERERR AEEHEHMAFE
ERMEESEBREMBRETRIEL
A o BHBRKREESARE DR
B @Y FemEELTRENR B
BEXBRcELABUNREEBRHE
A EERR (REAFEERD KA
HEFHEEMELHNKSE)F
BN RBME » A FEER L ERA TR
BRUBENRATFARORNNEER
2RI A B R T IS E R
EEERIRENATE - EFFEERAE
B BEEELAGITREEEXRRS
EXBUMBEHRAKRESRE  WiEE
BEMBREUFEZEFRERENR
& -

SRR - SUREEERARAE

155



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

156

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on its products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as

follows:

(i)  the distribution of Wuliangye liquor series,
National Cellar 1573 baijiu with 43% alcohol
content, Kweichow Moutai Chiew products,
Fen Wine with 55% alcohol content liquor
series, Red Fen Shijia liquor series, Yaxi Classic
liquor series and Old Vintage liquor series, wine

and foreign liquor series (“Liquors”);

(i) the distribution of Chinese cigarettes

("Cigarettes”); and

(iii) the investment in a residential apartment
for its rental income potential (“Property

investment”).

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment result, which
is @ measure of adjusted loss before tax. The adjusted
loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that interest income,
other gains and finance costs are excluded from such

measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2015

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

—E—HFE=A=1+—HLEE

Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
i BE MERE &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FHBIT
Segment revenue: 2R
Sales to external customers  SHEZEIINPEF 398,928 19,937 = 418,865
Other revenue e — = 48 48
Foreign exchange gains, net  JMEW S GF%8) 405 5 - 410
Total &t 399,333 19,942 48 419,323
Segment results DEELE (32,230) (4,317) (224) (36,771)
Reconciliation: &
Interest income FE WA 431
Other gains H ez 195
Finance costs R & KA (30,808)
Loss before tax B 7% A 5 18 (66,953)
Other segment HitpHER
information:
Depreciation e 13,708 1,126 209 15,043
Loss on disposal of items of ~ HEWE « HE K
property, plant and HEHEE 2 BE
equipment 22 - - 22
Impairment allowance of JEWE 5 5RIE 2
trade receivables VERERE L 504 - = 504
Write-back of impairment BOEKEZESHIEZ
allowance of VEREREE
trade receivables (152,003) - - (152,003)
Write-back of impairment BEEKEE
allowance of B R
bills receivable (7,054) - - (7,054)
Impairment allowance of T FRIE R H At
prepayments and FEWGRIE 2
other receivables BB B 240 - = 240
Write-back of impairment BB 78 15 51 IE K&
allowance of prepayments H e kA
and other receivables BB (12,635) = = (12,635)
Provision for inventories BN E] &
in respect of write-down FEZGFERE
to net realisable value 21,517 - - 21,517
Capital expenditure* B 3,370 320 = 3,690
@ Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of @ BEARAT T BEME  BERZHEE

property, plant and equipment.

ZINE e
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BESIHER (8)

(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

—E-NE=ZRA=+—RHIEFE

Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
i 5 MERE &t
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FHBIT FHEIT FHET FAIT
Segment revenue: 2
Sales to external customers HEZEIIBER 470,121 19,012 - 489,133
Other revenue H fth 25 - - 46 46
Foreign exchange gains, net  SMEW S CF%8) 1,003 65 s 1,068
Total A&t 471,124 19,077 46 490,247
Segment results DR (750,730) (1,602) (270)  (752,602)
Reconciliation: #ik
Interest income FEWA 5,115
Other gains HAth iy 257
Finance costs Bl & B AR (40,374)
158 _
S Loss before tax Br R A& 18 (787,604)
Other segment HitpHER :
information:
Depreciation e 9,523 184 209 9,916
Loss on disposal of items of ~ HEME « BE X
property, plant and ®EHE 2 BE
equipment 553 - - 553
Impairment allowance of FEUWE 5B 2
trade receivables B 437,411 - - 437,411
Impairment allowance of JEWE IR 2R E R
bills receivable 7,161 - - 7,161
Write-back of impairment BRI ERE 5 5IE 2
allowance of BER
trade receivables (250,748) - - (250,748)
Impairment allowance of TR FRIE & B Ath
prepayments and FE WK 2
other receivables LB B 53,720 = = 53,720
Write-back of impairment [0 8 1 3R I8 K&
allowance of prepayments H A f& W kIR
and other receivables B B (13,503) - = (13,503)
Provision for inventories BEAMBRZE ] #I1R
in respect of write-down FEFERE
to net realisable value 174,535 - - 174,535
Capital expenditure* BT 5,551 48 = 5,599
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of @ BAXHEBEYE KELEREER

property, plant and equipment. ZNE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

KEDIER (F)

Geographical information Hh & & R
Mainland
Hong Kong China Others Total
EE HEAKE Hit &t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAEL TAEL TAEL THET
Year ended 31 March 2015 “E-RF=A=1+-HLEE
Revenue from external REIMNIEF 2 Wa*
customers* 175,833 241,940 1,092 418,865
Non-current assets** EREEE* 19,736 8,104 = 27,840
Year ended 31 March 2014 —ME=A=1+—BItEE
Revenue from external REIMNPEF 2 e+
customers* 409,339 78,185 1,609 489,133
Non-current assets** EMEEE 27,416 11,786 = 39,202

* The revenue information is based on the locations of
the customers.

**  The non-current asset information is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenues from two major customers of approximately
HK$123,588,000 (2014: HK$224,632,000) and
HK$55,191,000 (2014: HK$15,216,000) respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2015 were derived
from sales by the Liquors segment and the Cigarettes
segment, including sales to two entities which are
known to be under common control of one major

customer.

Revenues from two major customers of approximately
HK$224,632,000 and HK$116,140,000 respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2014 were derived
from sales by the Liquors segment and the Cigarettes
segment, including sales to two entities which are
known to be under common control of one major

customer.

* WEOEHERBERPMEMMSHE -

= ERDEENBEHNEREEEMREH
mish - ERATEEERTA -

ERFrEEPMER
REE-—_ZT—FHAF=ZA=Z+—8
EFE REMBETEREFD AL
123,588,000 L (=& — 1 F :
224,632,0007% 7T) K&55,191,0007% T
T —[04F : 15,216,000 7T ) By 4 25
EXEE/MB&%@/MBE@%%( &
MAEEENHEE  MEBERELRE
H—RETERFAMERIEZES) -

RBEE-_FT-—HNF=A=+—H
LFE KEMBEIBEEFDAH
224,632,000 7T % 116,140,000 7T #Y
hamRREBDBREED A HE
(BREAMEEENHEE - ﬁﬁﬁﬁa,@\ﬁﬂ
BERB—BEREFAHRES)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W& HWRARK=E CF
NET )
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, W (MAAEEMNEERE) BERER
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after EREREBESTHENEEEMERF
allowances for returns and trade discounts. (ER
An analysis of the Group's other income and gains, Hag ARz OFFE) o T -

net is as follows:

2015 2014
—®2-1F —F-EF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 431 5,115
Gross rental income wHes WA 48 46
Foreign exchange gains, net SNEE Wz (F%8) 410 1,068
Others H Aty 195 257
160
1,084 6,486
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BN
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E-IF —F—EF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Interest on discounted bills BRI T 2 H B 3,511 =
Interest on bank and other BERAFANBHEEZ
loans and trust receipt loans RITREME R K
wholly repayable within R E R ZF R
five years 26,982 40,374
Others B 315 -
30,808 40,374
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

BR L Al & 18
ARE OB BAEAD R GEA) -

2015 2014
—E-EF —ZElmEF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
Bt & FTHAR FAT
Cost of inventories sold** B EFERA* 314,665 477,747
Depreciation: e
Property, plant and equipment Mz BE NREE 13 14,834 9,707
Investment property REMZE 14 209 209
15,043 9,916
Minimum lease payments BB EHEN
under operating leases REREMK 52,694 65,516
Loss on disposal of items of HEWME  BERZE
property, plant and equipment BEHZEE 22 553
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries  fi# &1 if BB 2 &) &9 &5 18 16 150 =
Impairment allowance of FEW & 5 /I8 2 R BB
trade receivables* 504 437,411
Impairment allowance of W 15 2 R B B
bills receivable* - 7,161
18 504 444,572
Write-back of impairment O EWE 5 FIE L
allowance of trade receivables* VERIER: S (152,003) (250,748)
Write-back of impairment BEEWEE
allowance of bills receivable* VERERE R (7,054) =
18 (159,057) (250,748)
Impairment allowance of A FRIE K E At e U
prepayments and A REREE*
other receivables* 19 240 53,720
Write-back of impairment 1 [5] 7815 0 38 % L At FE I
allowance of prepayments and IE 2R E B
other receivables* 19 (12,635) (13,503)
Provision for inventories in BRMBAE R FEL
respect of write-down to FERE
net realisable value** 21,517 174,535
Auditors’ remuneration G 2,500 2,650
Employee benefit expense EERME R
(including directors’ (BREEZ<
remuneration (note 8)): (Hi7x8)) :
Wages, salaries, allowances TI& %4 ZBR
and benefits in kind B R 65,537 91,655
Pension scheme contributions R IRAE F 5T B K 4,303 5,635
Equity-settled share option NEm s E B
expense fxiEE R 31,796 33,051
101,636 130,341
Direct operating expenses AERMASHIEEYE
(including repairs and FTEEREEEE
maintenance) arising on BR (RIEEERERE)
a rental-earning investment
property 63 107

* Included in “Write-back of impairment/(impairment),
net” on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

R Included in “Cost of sales”

on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* %

StA S GHARR 2 [REME GR1E)
(%m0 -

FFARHBRERZHERA] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

The employee benefit expense (including directors’
remuneration) includes housing benefit with
aggregate rentals of HK$7,251,000 (2014:
HK$7,492,000), which is also included in the total

amount disclosed separately above.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contribution to

the pension schemes in future years (2014: Nil).

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange
and section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

BRVLATE B (&)

RERFNERA (BREEEME) RIEL
& A7,251,0008 7L (ZF — W F
7,492,000/ 7T) WEERT - B #REE
NEFAEXSITHRBENLESR -

R-ZZE—RAF=A=+—H X&KEEY
EDRWHF A AR AR RFE R
REMAEER (T —HF &) o

EEME

IR AR B 22 AT £ TR B R AT & BB A R
Bl (E328) B161EBEBREAGEEZES
BT

Group
KEHE
2015 2014
—E-HfF —E—F
HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
FHxT FATT
Fees e 2,317 2,390
Other emoluments: E e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBEREYN &=
in kind 19,585 27,316
Pension scheme contributions R ARAE F 5T B 4 3K 105 97
Equity-settled share option expense DEREE CBIREER 2,351 2,250
22,041 29,663
24,358 32,053
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amounts included in the financial statements for
the current and prior years are included in the above

directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

EEME (&)
RBE-T-—=ZF=ZR=1+-HLF
B ETEERRSAREEREZR

BMRBEARR 2 BRE S EXBER
o E—SFBERN Y RRME26 -
ZEBREZATEE(ERFEBERA
ERSERERDCRELBEHEE M
RAFRERAEFEFHAMBRRZSE
HOERELXZEEMERE -

(a) BYIFATES
AEENTHEIULIFATESFNW

directors during the year were as follows: SR
2015 2014
—E-—ARF —ZE 4
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FAT
Hung Sui Kwan ST 3 360 360
Ma Lishan B 360 360
Lee Kwok Keung Edward Z [ 58
(appointed on 24 June 2014) (M=ZZT—HF
NAZTHOBEEZRE) 277 -
Zhang Min wRR(R=ZZ—m4
(resigned on 1 April 2014) mA—HEfE) - 360
997 1,080

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2014: Nil).

FAYEERNBIIFNATESRTZ
Hib e (ZF—F : &) o

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM< (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITEENIERITES
directors
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled
and Pension share
benefits scheme option Total
Fees in kind contributions expense remuneration

FeoRE  BARN NEzAR2
e REONE  HERR  BREER  He4R
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

2015 —E-1%

Executive directors: HITES
Liang Guoxing (note) A 2@ (fzE) A - 17,914 18 - 17,932
Cheung Mei Sze EXR = 619 18 437 1,074
Wang Jindong FER = 1,052 69 520 1,641
- 19,585 105 957 20,647

164 -
— Non-executive directors: FRTES

Wu Jie Si HER 480 - - 437 917
Chen Sing Hung Johnny RS 420 = - 437 857
Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio 4 420 - - 520 940
1,320 - - 1,394 2,714
1,320 19,585 105 2,351 23,361

2014 —TEF

Executive directors: RNITES:
Liang Guoxing (note) A ZEE (fizE) A = 24,474 15 = 24,489
Cheung Mei Sze Ex8 - 844 15 418 1,277
Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio T4 - 925 1 12 938
Wang lindong TER - 1,073 66 498 1,637
- 27,316 97 928 28,341

Non-executive directors: FHTES:

Wu Jie Si RiER 480 - - 418 898
Chen Sing Hung Johnny BREE% 420 - - 418 838
Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio T4 410 - = 486 896
1,310 - - 1,322 2,632
1,310 27,316 97 2,250 30,973
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM<E (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITESKIEHITES ()

directors (continued)

A Mr. Liang Guoxing is also the chief executive A R E S TN RAS B 2 TR
officer of the Group. # o
Note: Hat -
The remuneration of Mr. Liang for the year REEBE_T—RF=A=1+—H
ended 31 March 2015 included a housing benefit EFENHESERAEBREENERE
with aggregate rental of HK$6,394,000 (2014: AL e 4 ££6,394,0008 L (=2
HK$6,394,000) incurred by the Group. — U4 : 6,394,000 7T) °
There was no arrangement under which a director FAWEEEWNESRERETAME
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B & HE o
the year
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AlUESEHMNES
The five highest paid employees during the year FARAUGESTHNEERE—® (= 165
included one director (2014: one director), details T-NF: —RF)EFE FENMESHF
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. BEN EXHIzES - FRHBTHA (ZF
Details of the remuneration for the year of the —NEF OB IEFF S E S 8B
remaining four (2014: four) non-director, highest EFIBOT
paid employees are as follows:
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—ZE—-5F —E-HEF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FExT FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & * 2B R EYH = 5,301 9,331
Pension scheme contributions RONE FET 8] 450 83 60
Equity-settled share option expense NEREE CBREER 12,673 10,956
18,057 20,347

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(continued)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands

FluseFmMaES (&)

BN A THEINFEESERSFES
BWABIT :

is as follows:
Number of employees
BEAR

2015 2014
—R-HF —T-lEF
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7L £3,500,000/%8 T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7T 25,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7T £6,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 £ £6,500,0007% JT 1 1
4 4

During the year ended 31 March 2013, share options
were granted to the four non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for the current and prior years
are included in the above non-director, highest paid

employees’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid employees who are
not a director of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. %L
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been BRAEERFEANEEMREE S Z
made for the year as the Group did not generate FERTAE (ZFE—m4 - &) - Bt
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during EERFERBMNESHEE - RNEMH
the year (2014: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable [ B JE BR A A B 4R 7N R [ 558 P 2
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax ek rERRMBRTHEGTERIE o

prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which

the Group operates.

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-NEF

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

THEx T T

Group: NEE -
Current — Elsewhere ANER— H fth b 75

Charge for the year FANER 77 436
Overprovision in prior years AEFERBEREE (47,593) = W

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRNHEER, (BR)BHE (47,516) 436

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss
before tax at the applicable statutory rates for the
countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as

10. Fr8%i (&)

oL} NV E P IGE Pl
R K AR E R R R E
BB T B 98 MO B T R S T
SEMBEER, (E0) WL - 55
m

follows:
2015 2014
—E-EHfF —E—F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FATT
Loss before tax IR (66,953) (787,604)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMETENTIE (11,047) (129,955)
Difference in tax rates enacted WHEREMNREESR
by local authorities (35,325) (33,332)
Adjustments in respect of current DLAE AR A E BB IE
tax of previous periods TEL B A& (47,593) =
Expenses not deductible for tax AR IE R & B 10,959 63,448
Tax losses not recognised RIERB T E IR 52,198 94,229
Others HAfth (16,708) 6,046
Tax charge/(credit) at the effective rate  H BB RAE N IE
BH/(E®) (47,516) 436

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2015 includes a loss of HK$37,613,000 (2014
HK$116,176,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company (note 27(b)).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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AREEBREFA ARG
T

B BRERARB SRR IEENE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$19,098,000
(2014: HK$787,356,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,351,772,945 (2014:
the number of ordinary shares of 1,354,749,997) in

issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amount presented for the years ended
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 in respect of
a dilution as the share options outstanding had no
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount
presented for the years ended 31 March 2015 and
31 March 2014.

S 5 e o B
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N.ARAEBREFEAERMA

BREE

ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂ—
MDA AEILE 19,098,000/
JL(=ZZ — M4 : 787,356,000/ T)
RERNBETEARMETHEE
1,351,772,9450 (ZF — M4 : HBAX
REFHEE 1,354,749,997/% ) 5t &

WEASHEBEE T —hF=A=+—8
&:§*EEEHE+*E¢EEEW
JEREAEESHEELEAEET L H
B REARKITEZBREUREBEEZ
—AF=ZA=+—HARK=ZZE—WHEF=
A=+—BIEFEM2NZSRERE
BeRWRAEHELE -

SRR - SUREEERARAE

169



170

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥ - BMERKRE

Group
rEE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
BRE
RENELE ETEE BAZRB RE &3t
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
T TR T T THT
31 March 2015 “E-HTF¥=A=1-H
At 31 March 2014 and W-E-FE=ZA=1t-HR
at 1 April 2014: RZF-MEMA-R:
Cost KA 25,878 3,561 7,399 21,010 57,848
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (13,486) (1,697) (5,452) (13,231) (33,866)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
At 1 April 2014, net of RZZ-MEMA-R "
accumulated depreciation NGRHINE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
Additions AE 3,436 - 254 - 3,690
Deprediation provided during ERNERE
the year (10,350) (656) (1,038) (2,790) (14,834)
Disposal during the year EARHE = (13) o) = (22)
Exchange realignment ERBE 4 - 2 7 13
At 31 March 2015, net of R_Z-RF=A=1+-H"
accumulated depreciation NGRHIE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,996 12,829
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-hF=f=1+-H:
Cost KA 29,332 3,483 7,612 21,023 61,450
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (23,850) (2,288) (6,456) (16,027) (48,621)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 5,482 1,195 1,156 4,996 12,829

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

13. W% - BER&E (&)

Group
rEE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
BRR
BENELEE EEEE BAZRE RE &t
HK$" 000 HK$* 000 HK$* 000 HK$* 000 HK$' 000
THL THL THL THL THIL
31 March 2014 —“Z-WF=ZA=1+-A
At 1 April 2013: RZZ-=4MA-H:
Cost KA 24,937 3,155 7,187 17,389 53,268
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (8,691) (1,018) (4,639) (10,497) (24,845)
Net carrying amount REFE 16,246 2,137 3,148 6,892 28,423
At 1 April 2013, net of RZE-=ENA—-R"
accumulated depreciation nKZiE 16,246 2,137 3,148 6,892 28,423
Additions AE 1576 406 142 3,475 5,599
Deprediation provided during FRFERE
the year (5,037) (679) (1,323) (2,668) (9,707)
Disposal during the year EALE (498) - (55) = (553)
Exchange realignment ERAE 105 - 35 80 220
At 31 March 2014, net of RZZ-mF=RA=+-H"
accumulated depreciation nKZiE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
At 31 March 2014: W-E-mNE=R=+—F:
Cost [ 25,878 3,561 7,399 21,010 57,848
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (13,486) (1,697) (5,452) (13,231) (33,866)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,392 1,864 1,947 7,779 23,982
TR TR o SRR R A A
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The Group's investment property is held under a long

term lease and situated in Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment property is a residential
property, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of the property. The Group’s investment
property was revalued on 31 March 2015 based
on the valuation performed by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer, at HK$17,400,000 (2014:
HK$17,070,000). Each year, the directors of the
Company decide to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s property. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The directors
of the Company have discussions with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice
a year when the valuation is performed for interim

and annual financial reporting.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY REY =
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-i%F —F-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Carrying amount at beginning REJHREE
of the year 6,920 7,129
Depreciation provided during FAMERE
the year (209) (209)
Carrying amount at end RE R BREE
of the year 6,711 6,920
Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—HHARTEE 17,400 17,070

AEENREMELREE  UREBEK
HHERSE -

RAREFERBEWEZEE  FEHR
FERmEEAEB I REMERTED
¥ -AEENREMER-_T—RF=
A=+—BREBEEIEXESERMHER
RIS EENEERER D FET M
B M & 4§ B {E A17,400,0005% 7T (=
T — [P 4 : 17,070,000/8 L) ° AR A
EEATEFERIIDHEMEERE
B2 2 INERE(E - BB IR ERIETIS
M BE BUMRREREBEEK
FoARNREEERNGEERESFMAR
HEMNREEREREELER  UE
2HFERFEMBERE ©
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The investment property was leased to a third party
under an operating lease, further summary details
of which are included in note 31(a) to the financial

statements.

At 31 March 2015, the Group's investment property
with a carrying value of HK$6,711,000 was pledged
to secure an other loan granted to the Group (note
23).

Subsequent to 31 March 2015, the Group
disposed of its investment property to two
independent individuals for a cash consideration of
HK$17,000,000, as further detailed in note 39(a) to

the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment

property:

14.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

wEYE ()
RERANECRELERENAT —
BEZF  HE—SHBHRERRAY
BHEME3 () -

RZE—RFE=A=+—H A5EK
M (736,711,000 TR ENEE R
AEBEEREMERMER (PE23) ©

RZZE—RF=A=+—H%  &~&KH
LA17,000,000/8 LK € R E K HIKZE
MELETMEBLAL  E—HFB
B S KR M FE39(a) ©

N EEER
AEBEREMELZ A FEEFEERH
RNk :

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2015 using

BRAUNTHABHR=-Z-—RFE=A=1+—-H

ZAVEENE
Quoted
prices in  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB EET EERT
ZHE BEE2H B2y
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(5—F8) (€ 3=3-)) (B=/E) @it
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET TAT
Recurring fair value BEMRTEENZ:
measurement for:
Residential property FEME - - 17,400 17,400

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14 REM= (&F)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBEEBR (E)
The following table illustrates the fair value REBREMEZ ATV EEFEBRH
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment RT& : (&)

property: (continued)

Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2014 using
EANTHABER-2-NE=A=1+—-H

ZATEERNE
Quoted

prices in  Significant  Significant

active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERTS EE7 EETT

ZHBE BE2Y BE2Y

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E=F) (=) (E=FE) @t
174 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET THET BT FTAEL
Recurring fair value KEMATEESE:
measurement for:
Residential property FEEME - = 17,070 17,070

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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—®-HF=A=+—8

31 March 2015 =

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14, BREYZE (E)
ANEBEBR(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used

TXBUR AR EEREYREEMRAZ

and the key input to the valuation of the Group's HEREREELZH
investment property:
Valuation Significant
technique input
HEFE BE22Y
Residential property FEWE Comparison approach Market transaction
(B3 price per gross
floor area
BREEEEZ
M5 5B
15. INTANGIBLE ASSET 15 ML EE
Group
REE
Club
membership
BFES
HK$’ 000
FET
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZE—=FMAH—H
1 April 2014 and —E-FE=A=+—H
31 March 2015: —E-MFEMA—BR
—E-hF=HA=+T—H
Cost and net carrying amount KA & BR TFE 8,300
TR TR - SEEMERERAR
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - RHEARNRKRE
Company
¥

2015 2014
—E-LF —E-NF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FERT T T
Unlisted shares, at cost MBS - TR AE 229,588 229,588
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UM B8~ R 3R IE 646,868 646,316
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 15 B /B & B FX B (53,786) (42,262)
822,670 834,142
Impairment * VEREN (330,325) (330,325)
492,345 503,817

Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows: BEREZFHNOT :
2015 2014
—E—FEF —ZT—F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHTT
At beginning of the year REA] 330,325 252,040

Provision for impairment B R E B

recognised - 78,285
At end of the year RER 330,325 330,325

# As at 31 March 2015, impairment in aggregate
of HK$330,325,000 (2014: HK$330,325,000) was
recognised for the Company’s amounts due from
subsidiaries with gross carrying amount in aggregate
of HK$646,868,000 (2014: HK$646,816,000)
(before deducting the impairment loss) because the
recoverable amounts of these amounts due from
subsidiaries were lower than their carrying amounts.
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5 R-E—AF=ZFA=+—8 Ene
BRI (B & £ 5646,868,0008 7T (= F
— P94 : 646,816,000/ 70) (RIBRIRK
EE18) 2 AN A 7] fE Rt B 2 7] ZIB e
#RA $£330,325,0008 7T (Z T —PUF
330,325,000/ ) 2 BfE - REA &Lt
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Balances with subsidiaries included in the
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured,
interest-free and not expected to be settled within
the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors,
these balances are considered as part of the

Company's investments in its subsidiaries.

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of the subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

16.

S 5 e o B
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REBARNERE ()

ESIRRHE R R IRE e EH B A
A ERESRBEER R ERFBEHDT
SRMEHREFHRE+ —EA RS
BoEERR AFEBRTIRB/ARTA
REMERRREN — 817 -

TERAINARBNBRAZEETAR
TRREINFEREIBNAEEEE
FENEZANE  -BEERR - BHHN
BRANFEHECIREENRTE -

TEMBRFFENAT :

Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered Direct Indirect
and operations paid-up capital NG 2
Name FMEL/ ERTEER/ REBSE  Principal activities
£ AR EE BEMAZEX =% B TEER
Fast Boom Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REZRBERA R Hong Kong (E5 REZK
EREBRES/
BA
Richmind International Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
ERERERA AN Hong Kong (E RARK
ERARRER/
BA

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

16. RITB L AKRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Issued

ordinary share/

Percentage

of equity
attributable

to the Company

TEMBARFEOT : (8)

registration registered Direct Indirect
and operations paid-up capital NG
Name FMAEL/ ERTEER/ REBAL  Principal activities
a8 TR S EEAE V5-Z =% ME  FEEK
Silver Base Investment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of red wine
Development Limited 5k 18T ANICE)
REREBRARAA
Silver Base International Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 International distribution
Development Co. Limited B 28T of liquor and cigarette
REARERBRAA products
B A 8 BB E
Silver Base Trading and PRC/Mainland China US$62,100,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor
Development (Shenzhen) B/ RE A 62,100,0003 7T products in the
Co. Limited (“SBTS™)* (i) Mainland China market
REZHER(RINEARDA T B 930 555 460 3 2
(TREZHEE ORI D) ()
Silver Base Wine & Spirit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100  Distribution of Dimple
REFHEBR AR B 10,0003 7T Scotch Whisky

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

16. RITB R TRIRE ()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

TEMBARFEET : (&)

Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration registered Direct Indirect
and operations paid-up capital ADFER
Name FMEL/ ERTEER/ REEQL  Principal activities
a8 TR S B EEIE V- E =% B FEEK
Silver Base Wine & Spirit PRC/Mainland China HK$113,600,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* (i) RE /B R 113,600,000/ 7T products in the
SEFE ORI BR A RIX) Mainland China market
RABEAHISEHEER
Shenzhen Silver Base PRC/Mainland China ~ Renminbi (“RMB") - 100 Distribution of liquor

products in the
Mainland China market

RerBAHSEREER

Wine Kingdom Sales FE/FENL 3,000,000
Management Co. Ltd.* (ii) AR #3,000,0007C
ANFERESH
HEEEBRAA* (i)
* The statutory financial statements of these

subsidiaries are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

Notes:

(i) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

(i) Registered as a private company with limited liability
under PRC law.

* ZEMBRBEERBHRRIALIEH
BB %K E 5T Al 2 7 BT ok 2 ok B R 4
AREALK B A RIEK

Wit -

(i) REPEEEIMNIEEELE -

(i)  REBEFEDRFEEMO—HLABTRA
7l e

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMITBRARIMIRE (8)

180

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group E(\\%Z:Et: ——F=A=t+—HI#F
formed 17 limited liability partnerships established I BRERELEAETEES

in the PRC (the “Partnerships”) with certain
of its employees (the “Employees”) via a trust
arrangement. On 1 November 2011, the Company,
SBTS and Mr. Liang Guosheng, a brother of
Mr. Liang, an executive director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and also the director
of two subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a
trust agreement (the “Trust Agreement”) regarding
the investments in the Partnerships. Pursuant to
the Trust Agreement, Mr. Liang Guosheng held
the 2% contributions and all of his rights to and
interests in each of the Partnerships as a trustee of
the Group, and solely followed the instruction of the
Company to exercise all powers and authorities as
the sole general and executive partner of each of the

Partnerships.

The principal terms of each of the 17 partnership
agreements (the “Partnership Agreements”)
entered into amongst Mr. Liang Guosheng and the

Employees are:

(1) Each of the Partnerships is contributed by
Mr. Liang Guosheng as to 2% and the
Employees as to 98%;

J)EA‘:F‘.ﬁXi'WFﬁﬁ@,E%E
a %(f K] - R-ZF——%F
+HE$7fﬁﬁ%%’*}§(

Y RREBEE (RARRBRTES
RIEBRRREENRS  WHEER
REMENBRANES) RIRERANK
XM ErtmE (EFEHHED R
BEEHE  REBEEUNAREEXE
ARENEFEHZTEKREEN2%HE A
RENEBIKEENMEEN KR -
R B 5 5T £ R & KRN A B H) 8 7R IA
EENREXENE—BBRATAIKAN
SMITERBREN RIEE -

w

Fr> I 4}
A
]

B(EPEE REBTEEZFEREM
VMBI A REERE ([AKEE
Whadl) M EBIRR A -

(1) BEKEENHELLH ARERE
2% M&FREHI8% ¢

(2) Mr. Liang Guosheng would act as the (2) REBEEREESKEENE—
sole general and executive partner of the LRRATENA ZEEEAE
Partnerships, while the Employees would act as EFEREENFREKA

the limited partners thereof;

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2015
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. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The principal terms of each of the 17 partnership
agreements (the “Partnership Agreements”)
entered into amongst Mr. Liang Guosheng and the

Employees are: (continued)

(3) As the sole general and executive partner of
each of the Partnerships, the decision-making
power and financial and operating policies
of each of the Partnerships are controlled by
Mr. Liang Guosheng, who has the sole and
absolute control over the management and

operation of the Partnerships; and

(4) The residual assets and liabilities of each of
the Partnerships are entitled by the Employees
in proportion to their contributions in each
of the Partnerships, and are limited to the
amount of their investment contributions. The
remaining residual assets and liabilities of each
of the Partnerships are entitled by Mr. Liang

Guosheng.

As a result of the effects of the Trust Agreement
and the Partnership Agreements, the Partnerships
are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company
for accounting purposes. The Company’s directors
confirmed that, based on the advice from the
Company’s PRC legal adviser, the Trust Agreement
and the Partnership Agreements are legally valid and

enforceable under PRC law.

Certain of the Partnerships and the Company’s
subsidiaries are dissolved during the year ended
31 March 2015, and the loss on the dissolution of
HK$150,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the year.

S 5 e o B
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 RBARRIRE (8)

B (EPER) REBEEEZ
R H) 17 A Ik R (T
W&l WERGHRS : (B)

SEEFAT
&

ASISES

() ERBAKEENK—EELH
TAKA » BEIKERARREIA
MM BREERRARBBTE
TS MRBEBEEREREER
REAIKE R ME— AR 8 12 5l
"R

BREENRBEERAEHR
ZREREANTANEER
HEMER  AARFHRELE
BRR - FRREXNRTRIHE
ENBERRBEBLEEZEE -

&
%

R EFBERARCEHENTE
REHEOTE - ARDEAAR AN
BRANSAAE - ARFNEBHR -
READAREERME2ER -
3 R A KD KB A A R BART
RI5 R EERNT -

+

T

FEUCERAARNMBARCDR
 E_T—AFZA=1+—HLFER
fi# Bk T £F AR A9150,00078 T B E R
REEHEMHBRRER -

i
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=A=+—H

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E—REF —ET—F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Merchandise Bm 758,202 796,145
Packaging materials BEME 103 119
758,305 796,264

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

18. BRINE S RIERBERERE

Group
RESE
2015 2014
—E-ERF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FH& T FAET
Trade receivables fEWE 5718 208,216 611,881
Impairment allowance ol (B 8% 1 (207,061) (579,824)
1,155 32,057
Bills receivable B W E % 80,168 30,766
Impairment allowance o RI=R L] (5,555) (12,609)
74,613 18,157
75,768 50,214

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period of not
more than 3 months to its customers except for
certain identified major customers where longer
credit terms may be granted upon approval by the
management. The credit terms of bills receivable are
generally 6 months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade and bills receivables as
at 31 March 2015 relate to a number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. In prior year, over 61% of the trade
and bills receivables balance as at 31 March 2014
represented receivables from five customers. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade and bills receivables
balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of provision, is as follows:

S 5 e o B
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1B EREZREARERERE

(%&)
AEB—RAZEFPREHTZR=EAH
EEH - HECEEEH AR  ETEH
ANEERFPAERRRNEER - /&
WRBEZEER—RANER - A&H
B R (B8 6 FE WK TE R R R AR 12
- SR EEESERERBIEHS -
TR EXFTMARRERR T —F 4
ZSRA=T—HBMEKESREREKE
BREBRRZHNZIT/IER - B0 &H
BREERBRERERL REFE R
—NF=A=T—HHEKESK
E&ﬁ%%ﬁ¢'ﬁ@m%m#%%ﬁ
WEEZEFPHIRIE - AEEHEEKE
mﬁﬁﬁwm# BRI AR R EE
ROREMEERSER - BRESHR
BREWREBETERE -

R E PR B E Z KB R EREE
R E B RN B R M R ik 0 AT 0
=

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—B-EfF —ET-MF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER FHET
Within 2 months M E A A 38,471 22,517
2 to 6 months —Z=XMEA 37,180 3,048
6 months to 1 year NMEAZE—F 69 =
Over 1 year —F 48 24,649
75,768 50,214

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Included in the above trade and bills receivables as at
31 March 2015, amounts totalling HK$73,540,000
(2014: HK$20,805,000) were discounted to banks in
exchange for cash and included as “Bank advance
for discounted bills” on the face of the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The movements in impairment allowance of trade

and bills receivables are as follows:

18. BRNEZFENEREE (8)

FAR=_ZFTE—FHEF=ZA=Z+—H
ZIEKRESZRERERZES &
$#73,540,000/8 T (=& — Y & -
20,805,000/ 7T) B A1 #R 17 AL 37 LA EX
Be  WREFHBIRARPIIATRTT
ARIRZ|IR BTN o

JEWE 5 AR B R EA R ERER
BT

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —ZT-MmEF
HK$' 000 HK$’000
TER FHET
At beginning of the year REA] 592,433 548,065
Impairment allowance BRI E B
recognised (note 7) (Ft&E7) 504 444,572
Impairment losses reversed [mECAEIVEREYSE !
(note 7)* (BF7E7) * (159,057) (250,748)
Written off as uncollectible A 48 525 WAt 10 T it (221,264) (149,456)
At end of the year RER 212,616 592,433

* During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group has bought back inventories from one
distributor and the purchase consideration of
HK$143 million (2014: HK$193 million) was
offset with the Group’s trade receivables due
from this distributor which were previously
impaired. Besides, during the year ended 31
March 2015 and up to the date of approval
of these financial statements, settlements of
HK$16 million (2014: HK$58 million) were
received by the Group from a few distributors
for the previously impaired trade and bills
receivables of the same amount. As such, the
related impairment allowance on these trade
and bills receivables of approximately HK$159
million (2014: HK$251 million) in aggregate was
reversed during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in the above impairment allowance
of trade and bills receivables is a provision for
impaired trade and bills receivables in aggregate
of HK$212,616,000 (2014: HK$592,433,000) with
a carrying amount before provision in aggregate
of HK$212,661,000 (2014: HK$615,635,000). The
impairment allowance was recognised based on the
Group's best estimate of amounts that are potentially
uncollectible. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making such judgement, the Group
evaluates, among certain economic factors specific to
each customer and other factors, the historical and
current year payment pattern and creditworthiness of
each customer, the default rates of current and prior
years, aging of receivables balances, and the latest
communication with individual customers. The Group
has launched a series of plans to communicate with
individual customers and manage the credit risk of
the customers. Management will closely monitor and

continue to pursue collection of those receivables.
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables
that are not individually nor collectively considered to

be impaired is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

18.

BWEZ RN EREE (8)

YRR B AR RERBENEKE S
FAREBEZEORESTAOT

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
TER FHET
Neither past due nor impaired RiBHE R AR R E 74,613 18,157
Less than 2 months past due 28 H A 7w fE A 976 -
Over 2 months past due £ i3 B R B 3 (& A 134 8,855
75,723 27,012

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances and the

balances are still considered recoverable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. B RIE ZRE K HMEWR
RECEIVABLES FRIE
Group Company
KEE KA
2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-EF —E-F ZFE-HF —T—NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET TR FAET

Deposits paid to suppliers mEEEX N zES 331,086 343,813 - =
Prepayments TE R 7,654 13,705 - =
Other deposits and receivables  H b7 & K fE W k1A 45,280 36,905 - 5
Impairment allowance of T8~ TR IE K H fth FE Uk
prepayments and I 2 R ERE
other receivables (14,480) (27,112) - -
369,540 367,311 - 5
Portion classified as DEAIENBIRE
non-current deposits 231 (3.277) (7,107) - = —
187
Current portion BN HA =R 15 366,263 360,204 - 5
The movements in impairment allowance of TR A R IE R H fth FE U R IE )R (B B e
prepayments and other receivables are as follows: AT -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-IF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
THER T T
At beginning of the year REH 27,112 8,134
Impairment allowance B RR E R
recognised (note 7) (BF5E7) 240 53,720
Impairment losses B E R EEE
reversed (note 7) (M$5E7) (12,635) (13,503)
Written off as uncollectible ESE:: 97l E TR €= (237) (21,239)
At end of the year RER 14,480 27,112
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. EARE ZREREMEW

188

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above impairment allowance of
prepayments and other receivables is a provision
for impaired prepayments and other receivables
of HK$14,480,000 (2014: HK$27,112,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$14,480,000
(2014: HK$27,112,000). The impairment allowance
was recognised based on the Group's best estimate

of amounts that are potentially uncollectible.

Except for the aforementioned prepayments and
other receivables, none of the remaining balance
is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above not impaired balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

Included in the Group’s “Other deposits and
receivables” is a rental deposit of HK$1,066,000
(2014: HK$1,066,000), placed with Silver Base
(Holdings) Limited (“SBH”), a company controlled
by Mr. Liang, an executive director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (note 33(d)). The
balance is unsecured, interest-free and is repayable

at the end of the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

20 BeRBEEZEYURESIKE

PLEDGED DEPOSIT (SN
Group Company
rEE b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RE T NF _T-HF —_T—0OF
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TExT FHET TET FHT
Cash and bank balances W& RRTTEH 185,208 91,166 664 171
Less: Pledged deposit R BERITERM
for a bank loan E 2 TR - (8,826) - =
Less: Pledged deposit for o B EFERIEE R
a trust receipt loan i 2 17 5% (15,150) = - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 170,058 82,340 664 171

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$153,439,000
(2014: approximately HK$24,195,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposit are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

RIEBER  AEEUARESERNSE
& RIRTTEERRH) /153,439,00078 7T (=
T —PO4F 1 424,195,000 L) - AR
TR EBRARAEMEY - AW - RIE
R B ONEE RGO R(EE - S
RNEBERRE) ~AEEEERAE
BRERITIEARE LR AINE LUEFTIN

EETS -

RITASREBARTHEMNENZEE
ERIVK B - RITEBRREEBERERE
T 1A I 850 B 48 H RC Sk M 15 8 AR & AV SR

7 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. ENE SRR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end R EHRREZAHNENE S NIE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is B ARER D AT AT -
as follows:
Group
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT-MmEF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
THER THET
1 month to 3 months —Z=18A 716 -
Over 3 months ={EA N E 3,141 3,675
3,857 3,675
190 The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENESHIEARE R —MKIA0H AR
— normally settled on 90-day terms. HEE o

22. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 22. el & ~ At EMARIERE

AND ACCRUALS FFRE
Group Company
r~EE YN
2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-EE T NF ZE—HF T -NOF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx T FTER FHBT

Deposits from customers MEF KBRS 70,157 72,645 - =
Value-added tax payables FERTIEET 68,268 88,801 - -
Other payables H fib & 3B 2,962 12,295 - =
Accruals fEEtafE 26,867 33,250 454 7

168,254 206,991 454 7
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HEfmENRIBEARERTFHRA=MEA -

average term of three months.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. sTERITREMEER
BORROWINGS
Group 2015 2014
bS] —E-T% “T-mF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
EHFE Maturity HK$" 000 BlH = Maturity HK$' 000
(%) E) e TEL (%) Ell= THBL
Current
B
Trust receipt loan - secured (note (a)) LIBOR 2015 12,647 - - -
ERYEER-E 8 (M) +3.5%
G
AEFKE
3.5%
Bank loan - secured (note (b)) - - - LIBOR+3.5% 2014 7,800
RITEFR-EEM (H3E0) RARTRAZE
B M3.5%
Bank loans - unsecured (note (c)) 120% of 2015 303,000 110% of PBOC 2014 346,748 191
RTER-2EH (170) PBOC t0 120% of
FEARELT PBOC
FZE2120% HEARRT
FEZ110%%
HEARRT

HZE2120%

Other loan - secured

(note (d)) 12 On demand 12,000 - - -
EER-FEA (FEHd) EZEX
Other loan - unsecured
(note (e)) 18 2015 126,250 - - -
HEH - EEM (HEe)
453,897 354,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group's trust receipt loan denominated in United
States dollars bore interest at a rate of LIBOR + 3.5%

per annum (2014: Nil). The Group's trust receipt loan
as at 31 March 2015 was secured by the Group's
pledged bank deposit of HK$15,150,000 (2014:
Nil) (note 20), and was supported by a guarantee
provided by a bank in Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank loan
denominated in United States dollars bore interest
at a rate of LIBOR + 3.5% per annum and was
repayable in April 2014. The Group’s bank loan of
HK$7,800,000 as at 31 March 2014 was secured by
the Group's pledged bank deposit of HK$8,826,000
(note 20), and was supported by a guarantee
provided by a bank in Mainland China.

The Group’s bank loans denominated in RMB were
unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 120% of PBOC
(2014: ranging from 110% of PBOC to 120% of
PBOC) per annum and would be repayable in April
2015 (2014: repayable between April 2014 and
November 2014). As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s
bank loans were supported by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company. As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank
loans were supported by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company, a subsidiary of the
Company, a related company of the Group, which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Liang, and an independent
private company established in the PRC.

The Group's other loan denominated in Hong Kong
dollars bore interest at a rate of 12% per annum
(2014: Nil). The Group’s other loan as at 31 March
2015 was secured by the Group’s investment
property with a carrying amount of HK$6,711,000 as
at 31 March 2015 (note 14) and was supported by a
guarantee provided by a director of the Company.

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group’s
other loan in the amount of HK$12,000,000
containing a repayment on demand clause is included
within current interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.
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23.

24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)  (continued)
Based on the maturity terms of the other loan,
the amount repayable in respect of the other
loan is HK$12,000,000 payable in the third to
fifth years, inclusive.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group has fully repaid the other loan
of HK$12,000,000 in May 2015 after the
disposal of the Group’s investment property.
Further details of the disposal of the Group’s
investment property are included in notes 14
and 39 to the financial statements.

(e) The Group’s other loan denominated in RMB
was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 18%
per annum (2014: Nil) and was fully repaid in
April 2015.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the
year are as follows:

23.

24.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

2
-I_ /|_,\

Bt - (&)
d (&)

RIFEMERO B HBER - ARE
FEFLF (BEEEMT)#HE

Hiutg & ()

e

HIEER £ ¥ /R12,000,000/8 7T °

77

RIBEHRRE  AEEEEHERE

EnEENMELER_T—RAFRAR
2§ {8 3212,000,0007 T 09 H b & 5%
FALEREEREMENE —TF
BRI &M 5E14 %39 °

(e) AKEBEUARKFENHEMERSE
- RI8%MEHNXGFE(ZF—1

% : 1)
% -
IEFE R TH

CWERZE-—RFHARH

ELEHBEERFAZEBHNT

Group
F5E
Losses available
Depreciation allowance for offsetting
in excess of related against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
RERHE TREEHERR
BERBNE ERHABZER @it
HK$"000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THT THT THT
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=4MmA—H 416 (416) -
Deferred tax charged/(credited) ERRBaENR/ (GtA)
to the statement of profit or loss L BRI (fizE10)
during the year (note 10) (378) 378 =
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZE-ME=A=1+-A
“Z-NFMA—A 38 (38) -
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FERRBERING/ GEA)
to the statement of profit or loss ZEREHE (H5E10)
during the year (note 10) (38) 38 -

At 31 March 2015

R_E-RAFZA=1-H =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24 IEFEFIE (&)

194

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$233,935,000 (2014: HK$204,852,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has estimated tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$644,205,000
(2014: HK$461,978,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$233,935,000 (2014:
approximately HK$204,622,000) and Mainland
China of approximately HK$644,205,000 (2014:
approximately HK$461,978,000) have not been
recognised as they have arisen in certain subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

25.

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future after their assessment based on the factors
which included the dividend policy and the level
of capital and working capital required for the
Group’s operation. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China totalled approximately
HK$251,404,000 (2014: HK$380,745,000) at 31
March 2015, for which the related deferred tax
liabilities of approximately HK$25,140,000 (2014:
HK$38,074,000) have not been recognised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

24, IEIEBLIE ()
R-ZT—RE=ZA=+—0  LEHRK
£ B R B A K S 2 BT B A R 7B K
MENMRZRELRBF ZERBIOH

RIELETRTE - EFREBERERBER
UERAEELEEMENESREEER
SRFEERZMETHER - RAE LM
B ARERI BRRRTAMEED KA
MEMN R-TE—RF=A=+—8"
EERPEANMHBARZEEZE
Bt Z 25 S H %) /251,404,000
ot (== — P4 : 380,745,000 70)
E P #925,140,000% 7T (=& — MU £F -
38,074,000/ 7t) &I AB AR E R 1E & (&
W ARFERA]

ARRBAEBRRIRERS - WEHEE
AAEHZER -

SHARE CAPITAL 25. RA&
2015 2014
—E-1F —ZT-NF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TER FAT
Authorised: ERE
100,000,000,000 100,000,000,000%
(2014: 100,000,000,000) —Z—PU4 : 100,000,000,000%)
ordinary shares of SREE0. 1B T LB
HK$0.1 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE :
1,349,205,997 1,349,205,997 %
(2014: 1,354,749,997) (ZZ— U4 : 1,354,749,997R%)
ordinary shares of BREEIBTHE B
HK$0.1 each 134,921 135,475
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Company’s

issued share capital is as follows:

25. A (&)
ARARBEBITHRANESHHPENT

Number
of shares
in issue
BRfT
RH#E

Share
Issued  premium
capital account Total
BRfT &

/S {8 iR )
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TET TET

At 1 April 2013, R-_T—Z=FmA—H"
31 March 2014 and —-mE=A=+-HEK
1 April 2014 —T-NENA—A
Repurchase of shares* LAE
At 31 March 2015 —RE=A=+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange. All ordinary shares repurchased during the
year ended 31 March 2015 were cancelled, and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the par value of the repurchased ordinary shares so
cancelled. The premium of HK$5,060,000 paid for
the repurchase of the ordinary shares was charged to
the share premium account. An amount equivalent
to the par value of the ordinary shares cancelled
was transferred to the capital redemption reserve as
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
the share options issued under the scheme are

included in note 26 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive directors, non-executive
directors, independent non-executive directors, a
substantial shareholder of the Company and other
employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 20 February 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10

years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general

meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.
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26. BBIRESTE
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. BBRRHESTE (&)

198

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 5 business days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or

the expiry date of the scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares; (ii) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; and (iii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the

date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26. fmifEst 8l ()
- AR AT B M R 1T 8 M BEAR 4 10

the Scheme during the year: L
2015 2014
—EB-EfF —T-mE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
¥ BRE MnETH e
THEE 28 1TEEE %A
HK$ 000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BRET TR BEET TR
At beginning of the year REA 3.102 75,584 3.102 116,379
Cancelled during the year FREH 3.102 (74,559) = =
Lapsed during the year FRERY 3.102 (1,025) 3.102 (40,795)
At end of the year RER - - 3.102 75,584
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at 31 March 2014 were as

follows:

Number of options

Exercise price

26.

B8 ()
R-Z-ME=A=+—AHRTER
R 1T B RITEEMT -

Exercise period

EREEE IfEE 11 5
000 HK$ per share
T i FlRETT
15,117 3.102 3 Aug 2013 - 2 Aug 2022
—E—=FNA=ZHZE
—E--F)N\HAZH
22,675 3.102 3 Aug 2014 — 2 Aug 2022
—E-HENA=HZE
—E-_F)N\HZH
37,792 3.102 3 Aug 2015 — 2 Aug 2022
—E-RFNA=ZHZE
—E-F)N\HZH
75,584

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had 75,583,500
share options outstanding under the Scheme,
represented approximately 5.6% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date. During the year ended
31 March 2015, 1,025,000 share options were
lapsed and upon receiving the consent from the
relevant grantees of the Company’s share options,
74,558,500 share options were cancelled by the
Company with the related share option expense
of HK$31,796,000 recognised immediately to the
Group’s profit or loss upon cancellation (2014:
HK$33,051,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on
22 April 2015, a total of 134,900,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company
and other employees of the Group in respect of their

services to the Group in the forthcoming year.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The vesting date, exercise price and exercise periods

of these share options are as follows:

Number of options
BREHE

‘000

TR

26,980

26,980

26,980

26,980

26,980

134,900

Vesting date
o Rl

First anniversary of the
date of grant
R A BRREEEFH

Second anniversary of the
date of grant
R H B #%RE — RSB

Third anniversary of the
date of grant
ML R BRE=EBFH

Fourth anniversary of the
date of grant
R B EA % 5 (&R 5 B

Fifth anniversary of the
date of grant
R H B H% % R EAF B

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 127,100,000 share options

outstanding under the Scheme, which represented

approximately 9.4% of the Company’s shares in issue

as at that date.

26. B AERT & ()

ZEBRENEBAY  TERERTRE

HAGOR ¢

Exercise price
THEE

HK$ per share
BRET

1.09

1.09

1.09

1.09

1.09

R EB S RRESENBE - KA F
HRHEZ T 215127,100,0000% 14 A 171
R E - HERARRRZBENE %

Exercise period

TES

22 April 2016 to

21 April 2021

- AFmAZ+ZH=E
—E-—FWOA=+—H
22 April 2017 to

21 April 2021
“E—+tFMA=-+=HZE
T —FMA=+—H
22 April 2018 to

21 April 2021
—E-N\FONAZ+=ZHZE
—E_—FMHA=-+—H
22 April 2019 to

21 April 2021
—E-AFNAZ+ZAZE
—E-—FMA=+—H
22 April 2020 to

21 April 2021
—ZE-TEMNA=-F+=HE
—E-—FMA=-+—H

1THLAD #99.4% -
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27. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and

the movements therein for the current and

prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(ii)

The Group'’s capital reserve represents the
differences between the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired upon the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the

Company’s shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company
Law, the Company’s subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve. When the balance of
the reserve fund reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of registered capital

after such usages.
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27. RESERVES (continued) 27. {#E (&)

SRR - SUREEERARAE

(b) Company (b) AR A]
Share Capital Share
premium Capital  redemption option  Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Ex BRE
ROEER  AARE  RERG e RitE# ag
Notes  HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
i THT T TR TR T TR
At 1 April 2013 R-E-ZFNA-H 485,148 229,208 1,000 63,319 (327,039) 451,636
Loss for the year and ENERRENZE
total comprehensive BlagE
loss for the year - - - - (116,176)  (116,176)
Equity-settled share NERGE 2 BRE
option arrangements T 26 - - - 33,051 = 33,051
Share options lapsed BREAN - - = (8,672) 8,672 =
203
At31March 2014and  R-F-BE=ZA=+-BR
at 1 April 2014 RZZ-HEMA-H 485,148 229,208 1,000 87,698 (434,583) 368,511
lossfortheyearand ~ FABERFAZE
total comprehensive BiElae
loss for the year - - - - (37,613) (37,613)
Equity-settled share WERGEE 2 BRE
option arrangements R 26 - - - 31,79 - 31,79
Share options lapsed BREXA RIS
and cancelled - - - (119,494) 119,494 -
Repurchase of shares  EEEIR{A 25 (5,060) - 554 - (554) (5,060)
At 31 March 2015 RZ5-1£=A=1-H 430,088 229,208 1,554 - (353,216) 357,634
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27. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The loss of HK$116,176,000 for the year ended
31 March 2014 included impairment loss on
investments in subsidiaries of the Company of
HK$78,285,000.

The Company's capital reserve represents
the excess of the net book values of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group has bought back inventories from
a distributor at the purchase consideration
of HK$143,088,000,
added tax of HK$52,958,000. The purchase

including the value-

consideration of the inventories bought back by
the Group resulted in no cash outflow during
the year ended 31 March 2015 as all of the
purchase consideration was offset with the
Group's trade receivables of HK$143,088,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2015,
provision for reinstatement cost of
HK$2,718,000 (2014: Nil) was capitalised as
leasehold improvements under property, plant

and equipment.

« Annual Report 2015

27. %@ (18)

(b)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group has bought back inventories from certain
distributors at the purchase consideration
in aggregate of HK$209,722,000, including
the value-added tax of HK$49,951,000. The
purchase consideration of the inventories
bought back by the Group resulted in no
cash outflow during the year ended 31 March
2014 as all of the purchase consideration
was offset with the Group’s trade receivables
of HK$193,025,000 and other receivable of
HK$16,697,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, bank
interest income of HK$1,709,000 on the
Group’s pledged deposits was not yet received,
and the related interest receivable was included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at 31 March 2013. The interest receivable
was fully settled during the year ended 31
March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, interest
expense of HK$828,000 on the Group’s
interest-bearing bank borrowings remained
unpaid, and the related interest payable was
included in deposits received, other payables
and accruals as at 31 March 2013. The interest
payable was fully settled during the year ended
31 March 2014.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

28. At R REBRWE (&)

TBHRERH (E)

(@)

REEZZT—HE=A=+—H1F
FE - AEEREDEHEE BT
B BEREA%/209,722,000
7T - B 5 (E 49,951,000/
ﬁo$$E%@T“2$“ﬁ%ﬁ
EORHE_T-—NF=A="+—
EtiEWZﬁimﬁ Sy
BEREBELEASENEKE
5 3 IE193,025,000% 7T K £ ftb &
WK I816,697,00078 TTAT K 88 -

REZE_ZT—=F=ZA=+—H
LFE MR AEEZEEIF
T 2 U E11,709,0005% 7T 2 SR 1T F
B - mB@EEWRFEE A
RZE—=F=A=+—HBzH#&
R - 12e REAEWFIE - f&
KHEEREBEE=_T—WF=A
=S+—BUEFERHLS -

RBEE-_Z—=F=A=+—AHL
FE - AEEFERITEBEEZFE
1 32828,000/8 L BRI - M
HREMRFEEFARZZ—=
FZA=+—RAZBWT 2 * Hftr
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. JWAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent RIMEBAR - WERTBRERPEE 2
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements KABENT
were as follows:
Company
AT
2015 2014
—Z-HfF —E-MEF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT T
Guarantees given to banks in HARTHME R ER 2
connection with facilities BE M RERTT
granted to subsidiaries RIEER
of the Company 478,750 441,315
Guarantee given in lieu of REERUARE
property rental payment of ARARHMWB AR Z
a subsidiary of the Company YER SR 4,484 19,856
483,234 461,171

As at 31 March 2015, the banking facilities in respect
of loans granted to certain subsidiaries subject to
the guarantee given to banks by the Company
were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$303,000,000 (2014: approximately
HK$346,748,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for securing

31.

bank and other borrowings and banking facilities

during the year are included in notes 14, 20 and 23

to the financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

As lessor

The Group leased its investment property
(note 14 to the financial statements) under
an operating lease arrangement with a lease
negotiated for a term of one year, which was
expired during the year ended 31 March 2015.
The terms of the lease generally also required

the tenant to pay security deposits.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant
falling due within one year of HK$48,000.

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises,
warehouses, retail stores and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging

from 5 months to 5 years and 3 months.

30.

31.
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BEEKH
AEBRAFEHRESRITREMEE
RRITREMEREENFBHN RN
MK EE14 - 20%23 »

SEMERH

(a) ERHEA
AEERBEEHERHAER
BANE MB/REMEI4) - &
ERGEEHRA—F - MZHBE
BERBE-F-HEFE=A=1—
ALLFERER - HEHR—RTT
BRAMA L ERES -

R=ZF—WFE=A=+—H8 " &%
B AR % R E AR A PTET S BT Al 5
HEBEHER —F AR EK
) 7R 2R & (X 78 & 30 IE 48 548,000
BT

(b) 1ERETEA
AEERBEZEHERHHAR
THRAESGH BB TEEKE
IES -ARMEHEEN TS
8 A ZE5F3ME A < HEETTRER -
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. S EMEZH ()
(continued)
(b) As lessee (continued) (b) 1EBEMA(E)
At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future N-E—RE=A=+—8 &~&
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 45 18 N A] 5 4l AL E AR S 0 B 2R
operating leases falling due as follows: FEfT 8RR R KA S =
BWT :
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—ZE—-0F —ET-EF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THERT T
Within one year —F RN 24,783 39,966
In the second to fifth years, S _FZEZFEAF
208 inclusive (BEEEMSF) 4,144 20,959
28,927 60,925
The Company had no significant operating lease RATRIRE BRI EE XL EHER
commitments at the end of the reporting period BE(ZZ—WOF &) o
(2014: Nil).
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32. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 31(b) above, the Group had the
following capital commitments and inventory

purchase commitments at the end of the reporting

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

32. AKiE
% b SCHEEE3 1 (b) B i 0 42 B AR B R IR
5 AEBMRRE ARG AT EARE
REBEFERE

period:
Group
Capital commitment AEE
BEARERE 2015 2014
—B-EHF —T—-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Contracted, but not provided for fEff F—MHHETE 2
Capital contribution payable BEEIHERBEELE
to a PRC entity 2,368 2,365
Group
rEE
Inventory purchase 2015 2014
commitments —E-HF —E-MF
BEFERE HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER THET
Within one year —FA 9,812,179 11,928,906
In the second to fifth years, F_FEERF
inclusive (BREREMSF) 8,091,262 13,979,851
Over five years AFLE 6,316,987 7,810,308

The Company had no significant commitments at the

end of the reporting period (2014: Nil).

24,220,428 33,719,065

ARABRBERRLBERAE(ZF
—PHeF E) -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

33.B@EAERS

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed (a) PBRABAFSHRKR E A I el A3
elsewhere in these financial statements, the S9N REBERAEE NS Z
Group had the following material transaction ETURTEARRS :
with a related party during the year:

Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-AHEF —FEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt & FET T T
SBH: RE(£E) :
Rental expenses HEZEMA (i) 6,394 6,394
Note: Hat

(i) The rental expenses of a staff quarter
were charged by SBH based on mutually
agreed terms at a fixed monthly amount of
HK$533,000 (2014: HK$533,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the
rental expenses were determined by reference
to the prevailing market rental of comparable
premises. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, Mr.
Liang Guosheng, a key management
personnel of the Group, a director of
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group and
a brother of Mr. Liang, held 2% equity
interest in each of the Partnerships on
behalf of SBTS as at 31 March 2014 and
2015, further details of which are set out
in note 16 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, a director of the
Company has provided a guarantee in
favour of a financial institution in Hong
Kong for an other loan granted to the
Group of HK$12,000,000 (2014: Nil) as at
31 March 2015.

As at 31 March 2014, a related company,
which is beneficially owned by Mr. Liang,
had provided a guarantee in favour of
a bank for a bank loan granted to the
Group of HK$44,132,000 as at 31 March
2014. The bank loan was fully repaid
by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2015.

Details of which are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

Commitments with a related party:

As disclosed in note 33(a), the Group has
rental commitments with SBH of HK$6,394,000
(2014: HK$12,787,000) under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due within one year

(2014: within two years).
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33. B ARE (58)

(b)

—~
=

i 0 M E MR 5

BiIEEFEHZ R=F—0
ENZFE—RHF=ZA=1+—
H ZREBLE (BAEEASE
EMExZEFEAS - ~5EH
ATHBEMNBEARNESMN
MRGEENRD) ARIEBE
BRI FESEN
BER2%BR AR - E—F
FEIBER MK E6 o

RZE—REF=ZA=+—
H AXRBl—REEWES
—HeREERERRZER
EEERN _ZT—AE=A
=+—H /412,000,000 Jt

T NE:E) 2EME

R=ZZFE—WMF=ZA=+—
B — REEERHES
Z B AR R —EEITER

HERBASBEERN =
T—NWE=ZA=+—8%4
44,132,000 L 2R 1T E
R AREBEREE - Z
—RAF=ZA=t+—HILEE
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The amounts due to directors included
in the Group’s current liabilities are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

The amounts due to related parties
represented a payable to a key
management personnel of HK$1,116,000
(2014: HK$160,000) and a payable to
SBH of HK$3,197,000 (2014: Nil). The
balances included in the Group’s current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the Group’s rental deposit
placed with SBH as at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in note 19
to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel

of the Group:

33. BB ARG (1)

(d) EEREEETT RREERNALR

iy AKEZABEESEEM
E=ZR ZEFE/ER
B 2B REBRTERD -

(i) FETBAEEH RIENR K ER
—ZTEEBAEBZHREA
1,116,000 7L (=& — 1
% : 160,000/ 7T) K FE 1+ 4R
£ (5&B) 2 3183,197,000%
T(ZE—OF &) - A%
ErrndaEeE o alas
MARER 2EREEE
BN .

(i) NEBRBEMREFRNRE

(EB)NESZRENFEBR
B 75 SRR M FE 199 55 -

(e) AEEIZEEABERM

2015 2014
—E-IF —T—E
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET T
Salaries, allowances and e RMREDN =

benefits in kind 35,029 44,392
Pension scheme contributions & K42 F 5t 2 £ ; 596 437

Equity-settled share option UEmEEBREER
expense 19,123 17,470
54,748 62,299

The balance includes emoluments of Ms. Luo
Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang, of HK$2,470,000
(2014: HK$3,296,000). Further details of
directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying

amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

instruments approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were

used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of trade receivables, bills receivable,
current portion of deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposit, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to directors and related parties, bank advance for
discounted bills and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these

instruments.

The fair value of the non-current portion of deposits
has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, which is approximate to its

carrying amount.

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

35.

TR T ERER

ZHEMEeMmITARHRERRNEKREEN
-

Group
rEE
Loans and receivables
BERREWRE
2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT-MmEF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FTHERT TR
Trade receivables EWE 5 71E 1,155 32,057
Bills receivable & W R 15 74,613 18,157
Financial assets included in FTATBARIE  Ee
prepayments, deposits K2 H 4th JiE W R IE Y
and other receivables DREE 41,491 32,538
Pledged deposit BEHEMEFEN 15,150 8,826
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESEEY 170,058 82,340
302,467 173,918
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERTIENERES
2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT-mEF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHET
Trade payables JERTE 5 5KIR 3,857 3,675
Financial liabilities included FTABWET S - EAbER
in deposits received, other HREREGTEED
payables and accruals TEBE 29,829 45,545
Bank advance for discounted bills 277 8538 22 & 24 3% 73,540 20,805
Interest-bearing bank and other  FER1T K EAth
borrowings (ER 453,897 354,548
Due to related parties JE S BB B 5 R 4,313 160
Due to directors JEREE IR 28,872 48,827
594,308 473,560
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. &R T AEMER (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EHpem T ANREHRNREMESR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T ()

period are as follows: (continued)

Company
PN
Loans and receivables
BERRERRE
2015 2014
—E2-EF —ZT—-MmE
HK$' 000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Deposits and other receivables 2 & & H fth fE W I8 - 5
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 664 171
664 176

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

REBEHAIIENEREE
2015 2014
—E-FF —T-F
HK$'000 HK$000
TER FHET
Accruals st 8 & 454 7

SRR - SUREEERARAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e o P

31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

36. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

37.

At 31 March 2015, the Group discounted certain
bills receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with
a carrying amount of HK$73,540,000 (2014:
HK$20,805,000) to banks in Mainland China for
cash. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to
the Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amount of the
Discounted Bills and the respective bank advance
for discounted bills. Subsequent to the discounting,
the Group does not retain any rights on the use
of the Discounted Bills, including sale, transfer or
pledge of the Discounted Bills to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of bank
advance for discounted bills recognised due to
the Discounted Bills was HK$112,021,000 (2014:
HK$20,805,000) as at 31 March 2015.

LITIGATION

In December 2013, one distributor of the Group
(the “Plaintiff”) filed a claim to a District People’s
Court in the PRC (the “PRC Court”) against one of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC in relation to the
Group’s obligation to buy back certain inventories
from the Plaintiff (the “Claim”). The Plaintiff
demanded the purchase consideration and related
compensation from the Group of RMB20.1 million
(equivalent to HK$25.3 million) in total.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the proceeding is at an early stage and the court
hearing date has not been fixed. With reference
to the advice from the Group’s legal counsel, the
directors of the Company are in the opinion that
the Group has grounds to contest the Claim and
because the above legal case was in its preliminary
stage of legal process, the outcome of the legal case
and the amount of penalties required could not be
predicted and measured with sufficient reliability at
the moment. Accordingly, no provision regarding
liabilities arising therefrom had been made by the
Group in these financial statements as at 31 March
2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and
cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, bank advance
for discounted bills and amounts due to related
parties and directors, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group'’s
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with
floating interest rates. The contractual interest rates
and terms of repayment of the interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of the Group are set out in

note 23 to these financial statements.

A reasonably possible increase in 50 basis points
(2014: 50 basis points) in interest rates would
have increased loss before tax of the Group by
HK$1,578,000 (2014: HK$1,773,000) during the
year and there would be no material impact on the

Group's equity (excluding retained profits).

38.

S 5 e o B
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I EEEREEERBE

AEENTIECHIABRREABRITR
HiEEARBReREHER - 252
RMTANTIEREZERASENZES
SEL -AEEBEAEREMEREEN
BE WERKEZRE BURRE &
& REMBYGRIR  BNEZER &
RN FALEBE  RITHRRR
BRIAREMNEER T REEFKE - A
EERHEEEXHES -

HAEENSRMIAEENTIZEARR
xR - SNERR - EERR MRS
Exhk BEFSERHMHEAHER
ZERBOBE  FEHAWT

A = @
AEBEAENT SN EEPRABTE
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies. For Hong Kong operations, all
sales and purchases transactions are settled in Hong
Kong dollars or United States dollars. Meanwhile,
most of the sales and purchase transactions in the
PRC operations are settled in RMB. Accordingly, the
transactional currency exposures of the Group are
not significant. The Group has not entered into any
hedging transaction to reduce the Group’s exposure

to foreign currency risk in this regard.

A reasonably possible appreciation of 5% (2014:
5%) of the exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar
against RMB would have no significant effect on the
loss before tax of the Group during the year (2014:
no significant effect on the loss before tax of the
Group) and there would be no material impact on

the Group’s equity.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of
counterparties defaulting on the terms of their
agreements. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposit, trade receivables,
bills receivable, and deposits and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to financial assets.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details
of which are disclosed in note 29 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an
ongoing basis, and credit evaluations are performed
on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group has launched a series
of plans to manage the credit risk of customers,
further details are set out in note 18 to these
financial statements. Provision are made for certain
balances past due when management considers the
loss from non-performance by these counterparties
is likely. The credit risk on balances of cash and bank
balances is low as those balances are placed with

reputable financial institutions.

At the end of the reporting period, there are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade
and bills receivables are widely dispersed. As at 31
March 2014, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as over 61% of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables were due from the Group’s five

customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and trade finance facilities. The
Group’s financing activities are managed centrally
by maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash
equivalents to finance the Group's operations.
The Group also ensures the availability of bank
credit facilities to address any short term funding

requirements.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the

Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the

reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

38.

%Rk EE B

(&)

mEE

AEERAR
HEmEBE
mF -

Rk (%)
TE/:.\%’JERHEEEH*WEEE
WE PR BB

Al
EREVS

ZRHEE

Group
2015 2014
—E-HE — P
On demand On demand
or less than or less than
1 year 1 year
—FR —FR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FHET
Trade payables FES B 5508 3,857 3,675
Financial liabilities included in FFABWET® - EAh
deposits received, JE S 5B K FE AT
other payables and accruals BEMTREAE 29,829 45,545
Bank advance for discounted bills #8778 IR = 5 24 7% 73,540 20,805
Interest-bearing bank and other  #F B R1T R E b
borrowings* BE* 462,225 369,360
Due to related parties JE 5 R Bk 7 5K IE 4,313 160
Due to directors ENESHIA 28,872 48,827
602,636 488,372
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows: (continued)

S 5 e o B

31 March 2015 —ZE—HF=F=+—H

I BERERBEEEREREX

(%&)

nEE 2R (&)
AEBRARARIEENRBENREE
HEMSRABERRERROIEER
W ()

Company
¥ YN
2015 2014
—E-5F —T—-OF
Less than Less than
1 year 1 year
—FR —F R
HKS$’' 000 HK$"000
FHET THET
Accruals Bt 8 & 454 7
Guarantees given to banks in BARTHM BRI ERRE
connection with facilities i AR T IR A E R
granted to subsidiaries
of the Company 303,000 346,748
Guarantee given in lieu of R ERUARBERRFH
property rental payment MEAAzWERESNRK
of a subsidiary of the Company 4,484 19,856
307,938 366,611

* Included in interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are other loan of HK$12,000,000
(2014: Nil) containing a repayment on demand
clause giving the lender the unconditional right
to call the loan at any time and therefore, for
the purpose of the above maturity profile, the

amount is classified as “on demand”.

* AERTREREMBEESR ERE
12,000,000/ 7 (=T — 4 : ) 1Y
EmEE ZEHEMEERSARE
SKBHREMER 48 T ERA R RAE
iy i8] W (o] B R A0 S R (E A A - R
M ERBIEOTME RSB
BRIEER] -
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31 March 2015 —Z—HF=HF=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

& (continued)
Notwithstanding the above repayment on
demand clause, the directors of the Company
do not believe that the other loan will be
called in its entirety within 12 months, and
they consider that the other loan will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity date as set
out in the agreement. This evaluation was
made considering: the financial position of the
Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; and the lack of events of default.
In accordance with the terms of the other
loan, the maturity term at 31 March 2015 is
HK$12,000,000 in 2019 (2014: Nil).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeqguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

39.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,

which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net

debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings, trade payables, deposits received,

other payables and accruals, bank advance for

discounted bills and amounts due to related parties

and directors less cash and cash equivalents. Total

capital represents equity attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 2 April 2015, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with two independent
individuals to dispose of its investment property
situated in Hong Kong for a cash consideration
of HK$17,000,000. The transaction is
completed in May 2015.

On 22 April 2015, 134,900,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the
Company and other employees of the Group,
as further detailed in note 26 of the financial

statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group issued 7%-interest-bearing bonds
(the "Bonds”) with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 in total to five
independent individuals up to the date of
approval of these financial statements. The
Bonds bear interest at 7% per annum and will

mature in October to December 2022.

38.

39.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 40. #t B R &K
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and MBHRERER_E—hFE~A=-ThHAH
authorised for issue by the board of directors on TR N B E B g b fE I R e o

25 June 2015.
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